AGENDA

A regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Waxahachie, Texas to be held in
the Council Chamber at City Hall, 401 S. Rogers on Tuesday, September 8, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.

Council Members:  David Hill, Mayor
Mary Lou Shipley, Mayor Pro Tem
Chuck Beatty, Councilmember
Kevin Strength, Councilmember
Melissa Olson, Councilmember

Call to Order
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comments: Persons may address the City Council on any issues. This is the
appropriate time for citizens to address the Council on any concern whether on this
agenda or not. In accordance with the State of Texas Open Meetings Act, the Council
may not comment or deliberate such statements during this period, except as authorized
by Section 551.042, Texas Government Code.

Consent Agenda

All matters listed under Item 5, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City
Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these
items. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the Mayor/City Manager to execute all
matters necessary to implement each item. Any item may be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and consideration by any member of the City Council.

Minutes of the City Council meeting of August 17, 2020

Minutes of the City Council briefing of August 17, 2020

Minutes of the City Council special meeting of September 1, 2020

Amend Resolution No. 1292 to extend the FM 813 closure from September 9,
2020 to September 15, 2020

e o o

Continue Public Hearing on a request by Brenden Determann, BFD Managing &
Consulting LLC, for a Zoning Change from a Planned Development-General Retail zoning
district to Single Family Residential-3, located N of 809 MLK (being a portion of Property
ID 205458) - Owner: GIBSON & GIBSON LLC (ZDC-92-2020)

Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-92-2020

Continue Public Hearing on a request by Terry Nay, The Wash on Brown, for a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) for Auto Laundry or Car Wash use within a General Retail zoning
district located at 2201 Brown Street (Property ID 278472) - Owner: THE NAY
COMPANY INC (ZDC-87-2020)

Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-87-2020



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Consider request by Tim Jackson, Texas Reality Capture & Surveying, LLC., for a Plat of
Pecan Tree Meadows for seven (7) residential lots being 14.574 acres situated in the E.C.
School Land Survey, Abstract 328 (Property ID 259093) in the Extra Territorial
Jurisdiction — Owner: Timothy Crane (SUB-000080-2020)

Consider request by Dalton Bradbury, Acker Construction, for a detailed Site Plan Review
for proposed Office, Professional, and Administrative uses located within a Planned
Development-1-Commercial zoning district at 1340 and 1348 W. US Highway 287 Bypass
(Property ID 238267) — Owner: BARBELL REAL ESTATE LLC AND JAMES BELLER
(SP-101-2020)

Consider Development Agreement for SP-101-2020

Consider award of a bid and associated project contingency to Reynolds Asphalt &
Construction Co. for the 2020 Street Rehabilitation Program

Consider award of a bid and associated project contingency to Wilson Contractor Services,
LLC for the construction of the Lower Mustang Creek Parallel Force Main

Consider award of a service contract to Waste Connections for the disposal for bio-solids
from the Wastewater Treatment Plant

Consider proposed Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances to modify and adopt new
regulations on solicitation activities by repealing existing Chapter 23, “Peddlers” and

replacing it with a new Chapter 23, “Solicitation Activities”

Consider proposed Ordinance approving revised budget figures for fiscal year 2019-2020
and approving the budget for fiscal year 2020-2021

Consider proposed Ordinance approving the Water and Wastewater Budget for fiscal year
2020-2021

Consider proposed Ordinance amending Water and Wastewater fees and setting an
effective date of October 1, 2020

Consider proposed Ordinance approving the Robert W. Sokoll Water Treatment Plant
Budget for fiscal year 2020-2021

Consider proposed Ordinance approving the Refuse Service Fund; Hotel Tax Fund;
Waxahachie Community Development Corporation Budget; and, Interest and Sinking

Fund for fiscal year 2020-2021

Consider a motion to ratify the property tax revenue increase reflected in the Fiscal Year
2020-2021 budget in accordance with the Texas Local Government Code

Consider proposed Ordinance adopting the Tax Rate for fiscal year 2020-2021
Consider proposed Ordinance re-establishing classified positions under Civil Service

Comments by Mayor, City Council, City Attorney and City Manager



26.  Adjourn

The City Council reserves the right to go into Executive Session on any posted item. This
meeting location is wheelchair-accessible. Parking for mobility-impaired persons is available.
Any request for sign interpretive services must be made forty-eight hours ahead of the meeting.
To make arrangements, call the City Secretary at 469-309-4005 or (TDD) 1-800-RELAY TX



City Council (\ﬁ/ J’)

August 17,2020

A regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Waxahachie, Texas was held in
the Council Chamber at City Hall, 401 S. Rogers on Monday, August 17, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.

Councilmembers Present: ~ David Hill, Mayor
Mary Lou Shipley, Mayor Pro Tem
Chuck Beatty, Councilmember
Kevin Strength, Councilmember
Melissa Olson, Councilmember

Others Present: Michael Scott, City Manager
Albert Lawrence, Assistant City Manager
Tommy Ludwig, Assistant City Manager
Robert Brown, City Attorney
Lori Cartwright, City Secretary

1. Call to Order
Mayor David Hill called the meeting to order.

2. Invocation
3. Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Hill gave the invocation and Councilmember Kevin Strength led the Pledge of Allegiance
and the Texas Pledge of Allegiance.

4. Public Comments

Mr. Paul Christenson, 110 Williams Street, Waxahachie, spoke against the bond issuance noting a
number of projects in the bond should be funded through the General Fund. He commented on
the old Baylor Hospital noting the Baylor Hospital should not be the City’s liability and suggested
giving the hospital back to Baylor and making them tear it down. Mr. Christenson stated City
Council will consider a 3.5 percent tax increase and recommended it be decreased.

5. Consent Agenda

Minutes of the City Council meeting of August 3, 2020

Minutes of the City Council briefing of August 3, 2020

Set City Council meeting for September 8, 2020

Waxahachie Community Development Corporation contribution to Optimist for
pool renovation

a0 oR

Action:

Councilmember Chuck Beatty moved to approve items a. through d. on the Consent Agenda.
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley seconded, All Ayes.

6. Consider and take action on an ordinance providing for the issuance of the City of
Waxahachie, Texas Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series



City Council <
August 17, 2020 ép
Page 2

2020, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $23,255,000; and ordaining
other matters relating to the subject

City Manager Michael Scott reported the approval of the subject Certificates of Obligation, Series
2020 will issue debt for the 2020 bond issue just under $22,000,000. He noted the bond would
pay for the following:

» The construction, installation and equipment of park and recreational improvements in the
City;
The construction and equipment of fire stations and the purchase of fire apparatuses;
Improvements to streets and public mobility infrastructure, including related signage and
drainage and the acquisition of right-of-way throughout the City;

e The construction of improvements and extensions to the City’s water and wastewater
system; and

¢ The payment of engineering and legal fees incurred in connection therewith.

Mr. Boyd London, Hilltop Securities, reported the sale of bonds was very successful noting the
market is down and doing very well. He noted 1.86% was the final interest rate and explained the
process of the bond sales noting the City’s rates are AA2 and AA minus right where they should
be. Mr. Boyd stated the City is well recognized for a lot of planning and consistency over the
decades with the way it operates.

ORDINANCE NO. 3201

ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF CITY OF WAXAHACHIE,
TEXAS, COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION,
SERIES 2020, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$23,255,000; AND ORDAINING OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT

Action:
Councilmember Kevin Strength moved to approve Ordinance No. 3201 as presented. Mayor Pro
Tem Mary Lou Shipley seconded. The record vote was as follows:

Ayes: David Hill
Mary Lou Shipley
Chuck Beatty
Kevin Strength
Melissa Olson

Noes: None
The motion carried.
7. Continue Public Hearing on a request by Ryan Combs, Gardner Capital, for a Zoning

Change from a Single Family-3 zoning district to Planned Development-Multiple
Family-2, with Concept Plan, located at the Southeast corner of Parks School House



City Council ( 5 @
August 17, 2020
Page 3

Road and East Main Street (Property ID 138271) - Owner: STARPEACH TEXAS
LP (ZDC-77-2020)

Mayor Hill continued the Public Hearing,

Planning Director Shon Brooks reported the applicant is requesting to rezone the property to
construct an Independent Senior Living Development on nine acres. The multi-family
development will house residents 55 years of age and up. The building is one story with 185 units.
He recommended approval.

There being no others to speak for or against ZDC-77-2020, Mayor Hill closed the Public Hearing.
8. Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-77-2020

ORDINANCE NO. 3202

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM SINGLE FAMILY-3
(SF3) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-MULTI FAMILY-2 (PD-MF2), WITH CONCEPT
PLAN LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PARKS SCHOOL HOUSE RD.
AND EAST MAIN ST. IN THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS,
BEING 9 ACRES KNOWN AS A PORTION OF PROPERTY ID 138271 OF ABSTRACT
272 OF THE SM DURRETT SURVEY, AND ORDERING THE CHANGING OF THE
ZONING MAP THEREOF IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAID CHANGE.

Action:
Councilmember Kevin Strength moved to approve Ordinance No. 3202. Mayor Pro Tem Mary
Lou Shipley seconded, All Ayes.

9. Consider Development Agreement for ZDC-77-2020

Action:
Councilmember Melissa Olson moved to approve a Development Agreement for ZDC-77-2020.
Councilmember Chuck Beatty seconded, All Ayes.

10.  Consider proposed Resolution for senior housing for ZDC-77-2020
RESOLUTION NO. 1293

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS,
PROVIDING FOR A DECLARATION OF NON OBJECTION TO THE PROPOSED
SENIOR HOUSING IN WAXAHACHIE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

Action:

Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley moved 1o approve Resolution No. 1293. Councilmember
Melissa Olson seconded, All Ayes.



City Council
August 17, 2020 5@
Page 4

11.  Public Hearing on a request by Brenden Determann, BFD Managing & Consulting
LLC, for a Zoning Change from a Planned Development-General Retail zoning
district to Single Family Residential-3, located north of 809 MLK (being a portion of
Property ID 205458) - Owner: GIBSON & GIBSON LLC (ZDC-92-2020)

Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing and announced the applicant requested to continue the
Public Hearing to the City Council meeting of September 8, 2020.

12.  Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-92-2020

Action:

Councilmember Chuck Beatty moved to continue the Public Hearing on a request by Brenden
Determann, BFD Managing & Consulting LLC, for a Zoning Change from a Planned
Development-General Retail zoning district to Single Family Residential-3, located north of 809
MLK (being a portion of Property ID 205458) - Owner: GIBSON & GIBSON LLC (ZDC-92-2020)
to the City Council meeting of September 8, 2020. Councilmember Kevin Strength seconded, All
Ayes.

13.  Public Hearing on a request by Mikel Craig, Waxahachie ISD, for a Zoning Change
from a Single Family-1 and Commercial zoning district to Planned Development-
Commercial, located at 2541 US Highway 287 Bypass (Property ID 276711) - Owner:
Waxahachie ISD (ZDC-104-2020)

Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing.

There being no others to speak for or against ZDC-104-2020, Mayor Hill closed the Public
Hearing.

14.  Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-104-2020
ORDINANCE NO. 3203

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM SINGLE FAMILY-1
(SF1) AND COMMERCIAL (C) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-COMMERCIAL (PD-
C), WITH CONCEPT PLAN LOCATED AT 2541 U.S. HIGHWAY 287 BYPASS, IN THE
CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING 9.125 ACRES, KNOWN AS
A PORTION OF PROPERTY ID 276711, OF LOT 1, BLOCK A OF THE WISD AG
CENTER ADDITION, AND ORDERING THE CHANGING OF THE ZONING MAP
THEREOF IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAID CHANGE.

Action:
Councilmember Kevin Strength moved to approve Ordinance No. 3203. Councilmember Chuck
Beatty seconded, All Ayes.

15.  Public Hearing on a request by Matthew Smith, Vaquero Ventures, for a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Convenience Store and Gasoline Sales use within a General Retail



City Council o
August 17, 2020 (ﬂ@

Page 5

zoning district located at 1851 N Highway 77 (Property ID 262430) - Owner:
TRIUMPH SQUARE LLC (ZDC-89-2020)

Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing.

Mr. Brooks reported the 7-Eleven plans to operate a convenience store and gas station. The
location will operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. There will be six gas pumps allowing for a
maximum of 12 cars to fuel at any given time. The pumps will service both gasoline and diesel
vehicles. There will be an average of three employees per shift throughout the day and night.

There being no others to speak for or against ZDC-89-2020, Mayor Hill closed the Public Hearing.
16.  Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-89-2020
ORDINANCE NO. 3204

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO PERMIT A
CONVENIENCE STORE WITH GASOLINE SALES USE WITHIN A GENERAL
RETAIL (GR) ZONING DISTRICT, LOCATED AT 1851 N. HIGHWAY 77, BEING
PROPERTY ID 262430, BEING LOT 2R, BLOCK A OF VICTORY PARK REV.
ADDITION, IN THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND
ORDERING THE CHANGING OF THE ZONING MAP THEREOQOF IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SAID CHANGE.

Action:
Councilmember Chuck Beatty moved to approve Ordinance No. 3204. Councilmember Kevin
Strength seconded, All Ayes.

17.  Consider Development Agreement for ZDC-89-2020

Action:
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley moved to approve Development Agreement for ZDC-89-2020.
Councilmember Melissa Olson seconded, All Ayes.

18.  Public Hearing on a request by Keaton L. Mai, The Dimension Group, for a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) for Convenience Store and Gasoline Sales use within a General
Retail zoning district located at the SW corner of Brown Street and US Highway 287
(being a portion of Property ID 179000) - Owner: BUFFALO CREEK PLAZA LLC

(ZDC-96-2020)
Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing.

Mr. Brooks reported the proposed 7-Eleven store is similar to ZDC-89-2020 and recommended
approval.

There being no others to speak for or against ZDC-96-2020, Mayor Hill closed the Public Hearing.



City Council ~ ﬂ:
August 17, 2020 (.9
Page 6

19.  Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-96-2020

ORDINANCE NO. 3205

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO PERMIT A
CONVENIENCE STORE WITH GASOLINE SALES USE WITHIN A GENERAL
RETAIL (GR) ZONING DISTRICT, LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF
BROWN STREET AND U.S. HIGHWAY 287, PROPERTY ID 179000, BEING
ABSTRACT 5 OF THE JB & A ADAMS SURVEY AND ABSTRACT 393 OF THE J
GOOCH SURVEY, IN THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND
ORDERING THE CHANGING OF THE ZONING MAP THEREOF IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SAID CHANGE.

Action:
Councilmember Kevin Strength moved to approve Ordinance No. 3205. Councilmember Chuck
Beatty seconded, All Ayes.

20.  Consider Development Agreement for ZDC-96-2020

Action:
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley moved to approve a Development Agreement for ZDC-96-2020.
Councilmember Melissa Olson seconded, All Ayes.

21.  Public Hearing on a request by Terry Nay, The Wash on Brown, for a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Auto Laundry or Car Wash use within a General Retail zoning
district located at 2201 Brown Street (Property ID 278472) - Owner: THE NAY
COMPANY INC (ZDC-87-2020)

Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing and announced the applicant requested to continue ZDC-
87-2020 to the City Council meeting of September 8, 2020.

22.  Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-87-2020

Action:

Councilmember Chuck Beatty moved to continue the Public Hearing on a request by Terry Nay,
The Wash on Brown, for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Auto Laundry or Car Wash use within a
General Retail zoning district located at 2201 Brown Street (Property ID 278472) - Owner: THE
NAY COMPANY INC (ZDC-87-2020) to the City Council meeting of September 8, 2020. Mayor
Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley seconded, All Ayes.

23.  Public Hearing on a request by Ryan Morrow for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for
Trailer or Truck Sales or Rental use within a General Retail zoning district located
at 3480 S Interstate 35 (Property ID 179036) - Owner: MORRIS COX (ZDC-88-2020)

Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing.



City Council (ﬁﬂ)
August 17, 2020
Page 7

Mr. Brooks stated the applicant is requesting to use an existing vacant building as a Truck Sales
and Fleet Center. He reviewed the proposed use and staff recommended approval.

There being no others to speak for or against ZDC-88-2020, Mayor Hill closed the Public Hearing,
24.  Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-88-2020
ORDINANCE NO. 3206

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO PERMIT A
TRAILER OR TRUCK SALES OR RENTAL (TRUCK DEALERSHIP) USE WITHIN A
GENERAL RETAIL (GR) ZONING DISTRICT, LOCATED AT 3480 S. INTERSTATE
HIGHWAY 35, BEING PROPERTY ID 179036, IN THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE,
ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING ABSTRACT 6 OF THE JC ARMSTRONG SURVEY,
AND ORDERING THE CHANGING OF THE ZONING MAP THEREOF IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SAID CHANGE.

Action:
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley moved to approve Ordinance No. 3206 per staff comments.
Councilmember Kevin Strength seconded, All Ayes.

25.  Public Hearing on a request by Clay Cristy, Claymoore Engineering, for a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) for Pole Sign use within a Light Industrial-1 zoning district located
at the SW corner of FM 66 and Interstate 35E (Property ID 174460) - Owner: DML
LAND LLC (ZDC-91-2020)

Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing.

Mr. Brooks reported the applicant proposed a new sign plan that displays a new pole sign (75 ft.)
location as well as a monument sign located along the northwest boundary of the property.

Those who spoke for ZDC-91-2020:

Mr. Clay Cristy, applicant, Claymoore Engineering
Mr. Michael Lyle, owner of the project, DML Land LLC
Mr. Lee Morris, applicant, for McDonald’s

There being no others to speak for or against ZDC-91-2020, Mayor Hill closed the Public Hearing.
26.  Consider proposed Ordinance approving ZDC-91-2020

ORDINANCE NO. 3207
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO PERMIT A
SIGNAGE PLAN (POLE SIGN) USE WITHIN A LIGHT INDUSTRIAL-1 (LI-1) ZONING

DISTRICT, LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF FM 66 AND INTERSTATE
35E, BEING PROPERTY ID 174460, IN THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, ELLIS



City Council ~ ﬁ)
August 17, 2020 (.9

Page 8

COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING TRACT 2R 2 OF THE INTERSTATE INDUSTRIAL PARK-
REV ADDITION, AND ORDERING THE CHANGING OF THE ZONING MAP
THEREOF IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAID CHANGE.

Action:
Councilmember Kevin Strength moved to approve Ordinance No. 3207 as presented,
Councilmember Chuck Beatty seconded, All Ayes.

27.  Consider setting Proposed Tax Rate and Dates for Public Hearing

Finance Director Chad Tustison reported, as part of the annual budget process, Chapter 26 of the
Property Tax code requires taxing units to comply with the truth-in-taxation laws in adopting their
tax rates. He explained Item 27 on the City Council agenda “Consider setting proposed Tax Rate
and Dates for Public Hearing” meets the requirement for the City Council to set the proposed
time, and place an item on a future Council agenda to vote on the tax rate necessary to fund the
Fiscal Year 2021 Proposed Budget.

Mr. Scott stated the FY 2021 Proposed Budget includes a proposed tax rate of $0.66000, which is
a two-cent decrease from the current rate of $0.68000. Staff recommended taking a record vote to
propose an ad valorem tax rate of $0.66000 for FY 2021 and schedule a public hearing for Tuesday,
September 1, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. The City Council will consider adoption of the tax rate for FY
2021 on September 8, 2020.

Action:
Mayor David Hill moved to set the Proposed Tax Rate and Dates for Public Hearing to the City
Council meeting of September I, 2020. Councilmember Chuck Beatty seconded. The vote was as
follows:

Ayes: David Hill
Mary Lou Shipley
Chuck Beatty
Kevin Strength

Noes: Melissa Olson
The motion carried.

28.  Consider Interlocal Agreement with Waxahachie Independent School District for
shared fiber networks

Mr. Scott reported the proposed Interlocal Agreement with WISD for shared fiber networks will
allow better connectivity throughout the City to serve not only our City facilities more
economically, but provide network access to current and future school sites. He stated the one-
time $100,000 cost to the City is available from within our current year’s fiber extension budget
allocation and explained the funds will be matched by the state as the district plans to purchase
technology necessary to meet the current remote learning needs of the district.



City Council (ﬂ/ﬂ)

August 17, 2020
Page ¢

Action:

Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley moved to approve an Interlocal Agreement with Waxahachie
Independent School District for shared fiber networks. Councilmember Melissa Olson seconded,
All Ayes.

29. Consider bid award for Clift Street, Flat Street, and East Madison Street
Reconstruction to J & K Excavation

Director of Public Works and Engineering James Gaertner reported bids were received for Clift
Street, Flat Street, and E. Madison Street Reconstruction. J & K Excavation, LLC was the lowest
bidder in the amount of $1,648,620.77. Staff also recommended City Council approve funding for
a project contingency in the amount of $82,000. Mr. Gaertner stated the project is part of the
corridor rehabilitation capital improvement program.

Action:

Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley moved to award bid for Clift Street, Flat Street, and East
Madison Street Reconsiruction to J & K Excavation as presented, including $82,000 contingency
Jund. Councilmember Melissa Olson seconded, All Ayes.

30. Consider bid award for Royal Street Paving, Drainage and Utility Reconstruction to
XIT Paving and Construction, Inc.

Mr. Gaertner reported bids were received for Royal Street Paving, Drainage and Ultility
Reconstruction. XIT Paving and Construction, Inc. was the lowest bidder in the amount of
$932,524.50. Staff also recommended City Council approve funding for a project contingency in
the amount of $45,000. Mr. Gaertner stated the project is part of the corridor rehabilitation capital
improvement program.

Action:

Councilmember Kevin Strength moved to award bid for Royal Street Paving, Drainage and Utility
Reconstruction to XIT Paving and Construction, Inc. as presented, including $45,000 contingency
Sund. Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley seconded, All Ayes.

31.  Consider design and engineering contract for Lee Penn Park Pool

Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation Gumaro Martinez requested authorizing professional
engineering design services by Aqueous Engineering for Lee Penn Park Pool renovations as part
of Phase IV Improvements previously approved by City Council. He reported the fees associated
with the project will be funded by the 2019 CO Park Bond. Staff recommended accepting the
proposal from Aqueous Engineering in the amount of $62,000.

Action:
Councilmember Chuck Beatty moved to approve a design and engineering contract for Lee Penn
Park Pool as presented. Councilmember Kevin Strength seconded, All Ayes.

32.  Consider professional services contract with Plummer and Associates for raw water
pump Station No. 2 electrical improvements at Lake Waxahachie



A2
City Council éﬂ)

August 17, 2020
Page 10

Director of Utilities David Bailey reported the contract will authorize professional services for the
design of electrical improvements and a new motor control center for raw water pump station No,
2 in the amount of $86,480. He stated the project is associated with the City’s Capital
Improvement Plan.

Action:

Councilmember Melissa Olson moved to approve a professional services contract with Plummer
and Associates for raw water pump Station No. 2 electrical improvements at Lake Waxahachie as
presented. Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley seconded, All Ayes.

33. Comments by Mayor, City Council, City Attorney and City Manager

Councilmember Kevin Strength thanked Fire Chief Ricky Boyd and all fire personnel and city
staff who assisted with the funeral of Captain Jon Wilson. He stated the family was moved at the
support shown and it was very much appreciated.

Councilmember Chuck Beatty referenced the bond rating noting it is very favorable and thanked
city staff.

City Manager Michael Scott referenced a water main break that took place in the middle of the
night and complimented Utilities Director David Bailey and his team for responding so quickly to
repair it. He stated it is a testament to the dedication and professionalism of city staff when called
upon and the investment we are making to our infrastructure that major breaks can be repaired
quickly while keeping the residents in mind. Mr. Scott referenced a complimentary email City
Council received on the level of customer service provided throughout the wastewater team
making repairs to the system. He noted the email is a testament that the city is in the customer
service business.

Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley stated she is so pleased with the outcome of the bond sales
noting it is a complex and tedious project for all involved. She pointed out the ratings are the
consequence of careful and competent management planning and looking ahead and the results
show we are getting a lot for our money and that is a real tribute to our entire staff.

Police Chief Wade Goolsby gave an overview of police testing and the process a candidate must
go through before being hired. He stated the Police Department has a new canine in training,

Mayor David Hill stated Fire Department and Police Department candidates go through intense
training before being hired. He thanked the Fire Department, Police Department and City staff for
their participation in Captain Jon Wilson’s funeral. He stated the family was much appreciated.
34. Adjourn

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:51 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori Cartwright, City Secretary



City Council (5 b)

August 17, 2020

A briefing session of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Waxahachie, Texas was held in
the City Council Conference Room at City Hall, 401 S. Rogers, Waxahachie, Texas, on Monday,
August 17, 2020 at 5:45 p.m.

Councilmembers Present:  David Hill, Mayor
Mary Lou Shipley, Mayor Pro Tem
Chuck Beatty, Councilmember
Kevin Strength, Councilmember
Melissa Olson, Councilmember

Others Present: Michael Scott, City Manager
Albert Lawrence, Assistant City Manager
Tommy Ludwig, Assistant City Manager
Robert Brown, City Attorney
Lori Cartwright, City Secretary

1. Call to Order
Mayor David Hill called the meeting to order.
2. Conduct a briefing to discuss items for the 7:00 p.m. regular meeting

City Manager Michael Scott referenced the Consent Agenda noting the Waxahachie Community
Development Corporation (WCDC) contribution to Optimist for pool renovation was recently
approved by WCDC and will require ratification by City Council. He reviewed various projects
upon consideration of the issuance of the City of Waxahachie, Texas Combination Tax and
Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020.

Director of Planning Shon Brooks reviewed the following Planning and Zoning cases:

e ZDC-77-2020 — The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from Single Family-3
(SF3) to Planned Development-Multi Family-2 (PD-MF2), to construct an Independent
Senior Living Development on nine acres. Staff will recommend approval.

¢ ZDC-92-2020 — The applicant requested to continue the case to the City Council meeting
of September 8, 2020.

o ZDC-104-2020 — The applicant is requesting approval to allow construction of a fence to
surround the Waxahachie AgriScience Facility to protect the students, as well as the
livestock on the property.

e ZDC-89-2020 — The applicant is requesting approval to allow a Convenience Store with
Gasoline Sales (7-Eleven) on 1.5 acres.

e ZDC-96-2020 — The applicant is requesting approval to allow a Convenience Store with
Gasoline Sales (7-Eleven) on 2.5 acres.



City Council _
August 17, 2020 (pb
Page 2

s ZDC-87-2020 - The applicant is requesting a deviation from Ordinance 3019 that requires
the applicant to construct a masonry (drive-thru) screening wall on the property.

e ZDC-88-2020 — The applicant is requesting to use an existing vacant building, located at
3480 S. Interstate 35, as a Truck Sales and Fleet Center.

o ZDC-91-2020 - The applicant is requesting approval for a Specific Use Permit of a Sign
Plan for a McDonald’s Drive-Thru Establishment per City Council request.

Finance Director Chad Tustison reported, as part of the annual budget process, setting the proposed
tax rate and dates for public hearing meets the requirements for the truth-in-taxation laws.

Mr. Scott reported the proposed Interlocal Agreement with WISD for shared fiber networks will
allow better connectivity throughout the City to serve not only our City facilities more
economically, but provide network access to current and future school sites.

Director of Public Works and Engineering James Gaertner reported bids were received for Clift
Street, Flat Street, and E. Madison Street Reconstruction and will recommend bid to the lowest
bidder, J & K Excavation, LLC.

Mr. Gaertner reported bids were received for Royal Street Paving, Drainage and Utility
Reconstruction and will recommend bid to the lowest bidder, XIT Paving and Construction, Inc.

Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation Gumaro Martinez presented request authorizing
professional engineering design services by Aqueous Engineering for Lee Penn Park Pool
renovations as part of Phase IV Improvements previously approved by City Council.

Director of Utilities David Bailey reviewed contract authorizing professional services with
Plummer and Associates, Inc. for Lake Waxahachie Raw Water Pump Station No. 2 Electrical
Improvements.

3. Adjourn

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:51 p.m.,

Respectfully submitted,

Lori Cartwright
City Secretary



City Council 6 A)

September 1, 2020

A special meeting of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Waxahachie, Texas was held in
the Council Chamber at City Hall, 401 S. Rogers on Tuesday, September 1, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.

Councilmembers Present:  David Hill, Mayor
Mary Lou Shipley, Mayor Pro Tem
Chuck Beatty, Councilmember
Kevin Strength, Councilmember
Melissa Olson, Councilmember

Others Present: Michael Scott, City Manager
Albert Lawrence, Assistant City Manager
Tommy Ludwig, Assistant City Manager
Robert Brown, City Attorney
Lori Cartwright, City Secretary

1. Call to Order
Mayor David Hill called the meeting to order.

2. Invocation
3. Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor David Hill gave the invocation and ied the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge of
Allegiance.

4, Public Comments

Ms. Kassie Pierce, 407 Muemee Road, Waxahachie, spoke of the Old Baylor Hospital and made
suggestions on how to repurpose it. She asked City Council to entertain her proposal to utilize it
to help the homeless youth after they age out of the foster care system.

Mr. Paul Christenson, 410 Williams Street, Waxahachie, stated Ms. Pierce’s proposal on the Old
Baylor Hospital needs to be looked at. He strongly opposed the tax increase during the COVID
epidemic.

Mr. Scott Brooks, 134 Holly Street, Waxahachie, stated the city is being well managed and
growing which requires conviction, patience and smarts. He stated he does not want anyone who
attends City Council meetings and complains about this city to be thought of as representing the
majority of people in the city. Mr. Brooks stated people who are sitting on city council or running
for city council, should be honest. He stated as somebody who runs a local newspaper we are
going to hold same speakers accountable for the negative comments made at every City Council
meeting.

5. Consent Agenda

a. Amend Resolution No. 1292 to extend the FM 813 closure from September
2, 2020 to September 9, 2020



City Council -~
September 1, 2020 éﬁﬁ
Page 2

Action:
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Lou Shipley moved to approve item a. on the Consent Agenda.
Councilmember Melissa Olson seconded, All Ayes.

6. Public Hearing on the proposed Tax Rate for fiscal year 2020-2021

Finance Director Chad Tustison reviewed the proposed tax rate at $0.66000 being a 2-cent
decrease. In summary, he reported the annual impact on an average home value of $216,573 will
increase $37.00. Mr. Tustison stated for every $1 spent 8.25 cents is collected for sales tax.

Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing on the proposed Tax Rate for fiscal year 2020-2021,
Those who spoke against the proposed Tax Rate for fiscal year 2020-2021:

Ms. Laura Johnson, 203 Southhill Drive, Waxahachie

Ms. Shannon Almond, 115 West Main Street, Waxahachie
Mr, Paul Christenson, 410 Williams Street, Waxahachie
Mr. Patrick Souter, 700 West Marvin Street, Waxahachie

There being no others to speak for or against the Public Hearing on the proposed Tax Rate for
fiscal year 2020-2021, Mayor Hill closed the Public Hearing.

75 Public Hearing on the City of Waxahachie proposed Budget for fiscal year 2020-2021
and vote to set the date for adoption

Mr. Tustison reviewed the FY 2021 proposed budget noting the budget totals $90.2 million that
includes the following:

¢ General Fund - Day to day city operations funded by Property Tax, Sales Tax, and User
Fees

e  Water & Wastewater - Water & Wastewater funded by monthly water bills

Restricted Funds — Revenues for specific purposes — WCDC, Debt Service, Hotel/Motel,
Refuse, Cemetery

Mr. Tustison reviewed the FY 2021 General Fund Summary as follows:

¢ Revenues $45,479,165
e Core Expenses $39,618,757
o Service Enhancements (5-year plan) $ 5,748,801
» Proposed Budget $45,367,558
e Revenues less Expense 111,607
¢ Projected Ending Balance $22,031,060
e Days of Operation (Reserves) 196 days

Mayor Hill opened the Public Hearing on the City of Waxahachie proposed Budget for fiscal year
2020-2021.



City Council 5 /)
September 1, 2020
Page 3

There being no others to speak for or against the Public Hearing on the City of Waxahachie
proposed Budget for fiscal year 2020-2021, Mayor Hill closed the Public Hearing.

Action:

Councilmember Kevin Strength voted to set the date for adoption of the City of Waxahachie Budget
Jor fiscal year 2020-2021 to the City Council meeting of September 8, 2020. Mayor Pro Tem Mary
Lou Shipley seconded, All Ayes.

8. Comments by Mayor, City Council, City Attorney and City Manager

Councilmember Melissa Olson stated she did not have the opportunity to ask questions during the
tax rate hearing. She presented scenarios if the tax rate were to decrease more.

Mayor David Hill stated the budget workshops are open public meetings and that is an opportunity
for the public to see what a budget looks like and see how the proceedings work noting it is not
done behind closed doors. He noted during the audit process the city is monitored closely by the
regulators. Mayor Hill stated the Finance Department does a phenomenal job. He explained the
debt rate is lower due to over the years of issuing bonds.

9. Adjourn
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:50 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Lori Cartwright
City Secretary



Memorandum

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council
From: Tommy Ludwig, Assistant Cj nager
Thru: Michael Scott, City Manag

Date: September 4, 2020

Re: Amend FM 813 Closure Resolution

On Monday, July 20, 2020 the City Council approved a Resolution for FM 813
road closure for the installation of the drainage box culverts under FM 813. The
road was to be closed until September 2, 2020. On September 1, the City
Council amended the resolution to extend the order until September 9, 2020.

Unfortunately, recent storms have delayed the completion of the project. The
developer has requested the resolution be amended to extend the road closure
by an additional 7 days. With approval of the resolution amendment, the road
will be allowed to be closed until September 15, 2020 but may be opened
sooner if construction is completed sooner.

I am available at your convenience should you need any additional information.

Tommy Ludwig

1|Page



Memorandum

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council
From: Shon Brooks, Director of Pla

Thru: Michael Scott, City Manag >y

Date: August 17, 2020

Re: ZDC-92-2020 809 MLK (PD-GR to SF3)

On August 17, 2020, the applicant requested to continue case no. ZDC-92-2020 to the
September 15, 2020 Planning and Zoning meeting agenda, and the September 21,
2020 City Cound| meeting agenda.

1|Page



/3)

Planning & Zoning Department
Zoning Staff Report

Case: ZDC-87-2020

MEETING DATE(S)
Planning & Zoning Commission: August 25, 2020

City Council: September 8, 2020 {continued from August 17, 2020)

ACTION SINCE INITIAL STAFF REPORT
At the Planning and Zoning meeting, held August 25, 2020, the Commission voted 7-0 to recommend
approval of case number ZDC-87-2020, as presented by staff,

CAPTION

Public Hearing on a request by Terry Nay, The Wash on 8rown, for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Auto
Laundry or Car Wash use within a General Retail zoning district located at 2201 Brown Street (Property
ID 278472) - Owner; THE NAY COMPANY INC {ZDC-87-2020)

APPLICANT REQUEST
The applicant is requesting a deviation from Ordinance 3019 that requires the applicant to construct a
masonry (drive-thru} screening wall on the property.

CASE INFORMATION

Applicant: Terry Nay, The Wash on Brown St.
Property Owner(s): The Nay Co., Inc.

Site Acreage: 0.6584 acres

Current Zoning: General Retail

Requested Zoning: General Retail with Amended Ordinance
SUBJECT PROPERTY

General Location: 2201 Brown St.

Parcel ID Number(s): 278472

Existing Use: The Wash on Brown 5t. {Car Wash)
Development History: On May 21, 2018, City Council approved a Specific Use Permit,

SU-18-0034, for the subject property.

Page1of3




Table 1: Adjoining Zoning & Uses

Direction Zoning Current Use
North PD The Village at Waxahachie {Currently Undeveloped)
East GR Social Security Administration Office
South PD-C & PD-GR Office Uses/Brookdale Waxahachie Assisted Living
West PD The Village at Waxahachie (Currently Undeveloped)
Future Land Use Plan: Office
Comprehensive Plan: This land use type is intended for businesses such as banks,

insurance agencies, and accounting offices. Office land uses are
generally compatible with residential area, with the exception
of high-rise office buildings. Land designated for office is
appropriate along U.S. Highway 287, at a close proximity to (H-
35E within Mixed Use Nonresidential areas, as well as within the
Medical District.

Thoroughfare Plan: The subject property is accessible via Brown St.

Site Image:

PLANNING ANALYSIS
Purpose of Request:

The applicant is requesting a deviation from Ordinance 3019 that requires the applicant to construct a
masonry (drive-thru) screening wall on the property.

Proposed Use:

On May 21, 2018, City Council approved a Specific Use Permit to construct a car wash at 2201 Brown St.
(The Wash on Brown St.). Within the exhibits approved by City Council, the Site Plan displayed a
masonry (drive-thru) wall that was ultimately not constructed by the applicant for the site.

Page 20f 3




(8

Per the applicant, the masonry {drive-thru} wall was not constructed due to:

- Contractors need to run all major utilities under the approved and proposed location of said wall,
{Natural Gas, Water, and electrical).

- Needed to change the length of three raised curbed entrance isles to avoid causing traffic backups on
the shared approach/driveway during construction. This in turn moved said screen wall 40 ft. closer to
the building, but alleviated the traffic congestion concern.

- It was determined that a screen wall would cause a significant risk to the safety and security of the
customers and the sites of three Point of Sale kiosks.

- The wall, had it been constructed, would give a "screen” for criminals, providing cover for them to be
hidden from public view.

CHANGES FROM THE 5/21/2018 APPROVED SPECIFIC USE PERMIT
- The applicant added landscaping for additional screening of the property, and to offset the
exclusion of the previously approved masonry (drive-thru) wall.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATIONS

To comply with State law contained in Local Government Code Chapter 211 and the City’s public hearing
notice requirements, 7 notices were mailed to property owners within 200 feet of the request. In addition,
a notice was published in the Waxahachie Sun and a sign was visibly posted at the property.

RECOMMENDATION
Based on the details provided in this Staff Report and the present status of the documents subject to the
request, the Planning and Zoning Department recommends:

O Denial

= Approval, as presented.

O Approval, per the following comments:
ATTACHED EXHIBITS

1. Ordinance

2. Letter of Request

3. Location Exhibit

4. Site Plan

5. Landscape Plan

6. Elevation/Fagade Plan

APPLICANT REQUIREMENTS

1. If approved by City Council, applicant can apply for building permits from the Building and
Community Services Department.

STAFF CONTACT INFORMATION

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Colby Collins Shon Brooks, AICP

Senior Planner Director of Planning
ccollins@waxahachie.com sbrooks@waxahachie.com

Page3of3




July 13, 2020
City of Waxahachie,

Planning and Zoning
And
City Council

We are requesting a change/variance on a previously submitted site plan for The Wash on Brown,
located at 2201 Brown Street, Waxahachie, TX 75165.

The site plans were originally approved by P&Z along with City Council over a year ago, and included a
facade/screen wall at the entrance of the car wash facility that perfectly matched the front elevation of
the current building.

Construction of this wall WAS NOT done due to several complicating issues including sub-contractors
need to run all major utilities under the approved and proposed location of said wall, (Natural Gas and
Water, and electrical).

We needed to change the length of 3 raised curbed entrance isles to avoid causing traffic back ups on
the shared approach/driveway during construction, this unturned moved said screen wall 40 ft. closer to
the building, but alleviated the traffic congestion concern. However, this put the screen wall structural
piers right on top of already installed utilities, preventing the drilling of sub-grade piers to avoid
damaging underground utilities.

Upon further construction review, it was determined that a screen wall, (though it looked as if it work
on the site plans), would cause a significant risk to the safety and security of the customers and the sites
3 Point of Sale kiosks.

The wall, had it been constructed, would give a “screen” for criminals providing cover for them to be
hidden from public view. This is NOT a liability the end owner is interested in having and opted to avoid
building such a liability.

We are asking that this portion of the approved plan be waived or provided a variance by the city for the
safety of the customers and liakility of the owner.

ash oﬂ%

Terry Nay, Owner

Thank You,



(0

ORDINANCE NO.

AN AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 3019 AUTHORIZING A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT
(SUP) TO PERMIT AN AUTO LAUNDRY OR CAR WASH USE WITHIN A GENERAL
RETAIL (GR) ZONING DISTRICT, LOCATED AT 2201 BROWN STREET, IN THE
CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING LOT 1, BLOCK A OF THE
WAXAHACHIE CAR WASH ADDITION, AND ORDERING THE CHANGING OF THE
ZONING MAP THEREOF IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAID CHANGE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS:

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Waxahachie having heretofore adopted a
zoning ordinance and map showing the classification of the various property located within the
city limits of said City; and

WHEREAS, the described property is classified in said ordinance and any amendments
thereto as GR; and

WHEREAS, a proper application for an SUP has been made in accordance with the zoning
ordinances in the City of Waxahachie and said application has been assigned case number ZDC-
87-2020. Said application having been referred to the Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Commission
was recommended by the P&Z Commission for approval and the issuance thereof; and

WHEREAS, proper notification has been published for the time and in the manner as
prescribed by the city ordinance of the City of Waxahachie for a public hearing thereon; and,

WHEREAS, a proper hearing was held as required by law and the Council having heard
all arguments for and against said SUP;

NOW, THEREFORE, this property is rezoned from GR to GR, with an SUP in order to
permit an Auto Laundry or Car Wash use on the following property: Lot 1, Block A of the
Waxahachie Car Wash Addition, which is shown on Exhibit A, Site Plan shown as Exhibit B,
Landscape Plan shown as Exhibit C, and Elevation/Fagade Plan attached as Exhibit D.

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT

Purpose and Intent
The purpose of this Ordinance is to provide the appropriate restrictions and development controls

that ensure this Specific Use Permit is compatible with the surrounding development and zoning
and to also ensure that the development complies with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Zoning
Ordinance.



(D

Specific Use Permit

FOR OPERATION OF A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT FOR AN AUTO LAUNDRY OR CAR
WASH USE IN THE GENERAL RETAIL (GR) DISTRICT; the following standards and
conditions are hereby established as part of this ordinance:

1.

2.

The site plan shall conform as approved by the City Council under case number ZDC-87-
2020.

The development shall adhere to the City Council approved in Exhibit A- Location
Exhibit, Exhibit B — Site Plan, Exhibit C ~ Landscape Plan, and Exhibit D —
Elevation/Fagade Plan.

. The development shall maintain compliance with all Federal, State and Local regulations;

including, but not necessarily limited to, all applicable standards and regulations of the City
of Waxahachie Municipal Code and City of Waxahachie Zoning Ordinance.

If approved, the City Council shall have the right to review the Specific Use Permit after
12-months if needed.

Compliance
It shall be unlawful for the owner, manager, or any person in charge of a business or other

establishment to violate the conditions imposed by the City Council when a Specific Use
Permit is granted, and the violation of those conditions could result in a citation being issued
by the appropriate enforcement officers of the City of Waxahachie.

Furthermore, by this Ordinance, if the premises covered by this Specific Use Permit is vacated
and/or ceases to operate for a period exceeding six months (6 months), a new Specific Use
Permit shall be required to reestablish the use.

This Specific Use Permit shall run with the land and therefore may be transferred from
owner to owner; however, each new owner shall obtain a new Certificate of Occupancy.
The Certificate of Occupancy shall note the existence of this Specific Use Permit by its
number and title.

An emergency is declared to exist in that needed and approved improvements will be

unnecessarily delayed if this ordinance is not effective upon passage and this ordinance is to be
effective upon passage.

The zoning map of the City of Waxahachie is hereby authorized and directed to be

demarked in accordance therewith.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 8" day of September, 2020.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

City Secretary



(D

e




4)

l.ﬂ..nﬂ..M»lM DR ﬁﬂ@iﬁﬁgﬁl ‘.nuu 1 m “
= KISV S 2h
——i %EP: |
: -
(s
5 &
N | m
[} | m
= 2
“ "
Q
£
Emw _._vM _.M.,fm.wm\
132 i m
53 kgt

o : .—. ./...Wx b

O“.w.\ % \H\,

\ \ 3.0\\\ ' = X

: \\._\\‘oﬂ\\\\&ﬁ&aﬂ“@\\\\\ N
CAN® 5

o
X /@ﬁvﬁl N
' .
S ,.‘

) >
- :
s

o :
K
ty

%

2




D,

- SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL @

e pp—r—

@_ LANDSCAPE PLAN
—E—@w.w

L)
) N DL N I UCHIS R
N S S I
3 ORI gl WY LN IF AL DR L
A 1 il o ommrt.
A Wl Y SO I ol M i
W0 PR LA I LUEDVS & M O I

lmlw---l-'fi
l_--llll
=ﬂ“-_-ﬂﬂl“

.lﬁ-.—t-.l—l'llm
I LA b A

o E AAT B Sl B .iu,-_
—— S R

—H‘ﬂ-l'“— _--

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan

JHEL !I1'I'I|§

IHEHHUULLLE.

@['@@@@@@@@o@

Iﬂll-_---L‘-l.lllm-

AS BUILT 09/01/20  |SSUED 02219 LD L




7

Exhibit D - Elevation/Facade Plan

==

Il -

SQUTH ELEVATION
™

-

NORTH ELEVATION

werr

WEST ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION

e

ISSUED OTZ2089 [| so3 som w00

AS BUILT 09/01/20




(12)

Planning & Zoning Department
Plat Staff Report

Case: SUB-80-2020

MEETING DATE(S}
Planning & Zoning Commission: August 25, 2020
City Council: September 8, 2020

ACTION SINCE INITIAL STAFF REPORT

At the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, held August 25, 2020, the Commission voted 7-0 to
recommend approval of plat no. SUB-80-2020 as presented. City Council will need to make a motion on
the petition of hardship waiver request for inadequate fire flow.

CAPTION

Consider request by Tim Jackson, Texas Reality Capture & Surveying, LLC., for a Plat of Pecan Tree
Meadows for seven (7) residential lots being 14.574 acres situated in the E.C. School Land Survey,
Abstract 328 (Property ID 259093) in the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction — Owner: Timothy Crane (SUB-
000080-2020)

APPLICANT REQUEST

This applicant is requesting to divide a portion of the subject property into seven (7} lots for residential
use. The applicant is requesting for a petition of hardship waiver from City Council for inadequate fire
flow to this site. The City of Waxahachie Fire Marshall has reviewed the plans and provided his
recommendation of approval for the petition of hardship waiver.

CASE INFORMATION

Applicant: Tim Jackson, Texas Reality Capture and Surveying, LLC.
Property Owner(s): Timothy Crane

Site Acreage: 14.574 acres

Number of Lots: 7 lots

Number of Dwelling Units: 7 units

Park Land Dedication: N/A (ETJ)

Adequate Public Facilities: An Endorsement Letter from Nash-Forreston WSC was received

by staff. Adequate domestic flow is available to this site.
However, adequate fire flow cannot be established. Since the
proposed subdivision is greater than four {4) lots, a petition for
hardship waiver must be approved by City Council in order for
the property to be platted.

Pagelof3




w

SUBJECT PROPERTY

Generol Location: Across from 615 E Pecan Tree Rd.

Parcel ID Number(s): 259093

Current Zoning: N/A (ET))

Existing Use: This site is undeveloped.

Platting History: Situated in the E.C. School Land Survey, Abstract 328
Site Aerial:

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the details provided in this Staff Report and the present status of the documents subject to the
request, the Planning and Zoning Department recommends:

O Disapproval
X Approval, as presented.
O Approval, per the following conditions:

ATTACHED EXHIBITS
1. Plat Drawing
2. On Site Sewer Layout
3. Water Letter
4. Petition for Hardship Waiver Request

APPLICANT REQUIREMENTS

1. If approved by City Council, within 30 days the applicant shall provide the Planning
Department one revised electronic plan set that incorporates all comments.

Page 2 of 3




(/9

CITY REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAT RECORDING AND FILING

A plat shall not be filed with the Ellis County Clerk until:

1. All utilities, infrastructure, and other required improvements have been installed and a
letter of acceptance associated with the utilities and infrastructure installation has been
received from the Public Works Department;

2. Adrainage study has been conducted and/or a traffic impact analysis has been conducted as
required by the City’s subdivision ordinance.

STAFF CONTACT INFORMATION

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Chris Webb Shon Brooks, AICP
Planner Director of Planning
cwebb@waxahachie.com sbrooks@waxahachie.com

Page3of3




/0)

T ownrne crateeary
AT OF HAd 1
[ comrows |
3 WRLAL TwoOTHY CRAS ) 1 O AedTaact wa
r o W T L AT TP o o PONTR S5 PO 0 D A P B S8 5 o A
- MO 13728 OF THE CPICAL, PUBLE, IECEADN OF ELLs DOURTY. TEAL OHNET) S epes
iy e s At G D
i A1 4 bk, SV Lt o0 Pl
S wew LY ol i ik Tod i TRACT W0 N 28NS T
g o L L U Lo = THIRCE | B eI 0 Coal ol AT ol 59 et GAsoskl TACT A0 THE NPIMATE SEVTIAL Sl CF AN PREA
¥ o v—mamomomuu—-ﬂnumumm—uummmnu
; omegtt B ROREILAST Fma OF & TRALT OF Y
b ey Ry N LAMINE i WL e 0 st et e
gD 0T 70 S H THACT o Wl tusey Fmact & SinCrte el TuekT Aig VST £haspmg wrmeTe oD
LS o Bt 4 UTRTT Eait R e ar O OF i it o
- - ‘P.O_B “Mm_nwm-lﬂﬂmm
i o vt e e DRI € Mona dn st s o s Caise AT Lol OF A it e
o RSP TEACE T - portorm i Lo eyl T e e T
1 RELIED 1 134 A1 A FDUAK 4LV
-+ o OO PO o IRl mﬁ:ﬂrumlmmrm“mulmmwhﬁmmﬂnmw b Laarw
Vst Tancy T ——
AT - A PrED "';",“',:‘;' Y o teapatild o! ! AT S A st
FLOOR BT e aeein e~ e ~«_ ! i TedpiaCl Ovigh
e f A . it : BELTV o & (VAR OF M0 S PRETA b *
: o Sl h‘ OATIT L, A Dot 07 ey
w . *oqr! - - i
o T L S T il amowuy N YA O adT ot TRy
HiTeer——-==4 HE % vy T PLTP STy = CARPCATE OF MTROWL BT P COMMMICMEAS COMAT OF ELLS
2l R ER e ConmTe TEAsS
H T | i g sy MOV THERLPCRL MO AL Wk B TS SREBY.
i wrs L st A e, Tl W o
!l R eosacams| o THAT TIICITHY ERAN CXN'S HINRABT CRATTHY AMD A0GFT Trer) 1 AF [of Yo ot pinms ARV
* it Erie PRBHATY 1g btan mumwummmmmnmmmm
| i FORFVEN THE ETRPETE AAdD AL FYE ool TP Cin T { kanh Db sepaas CHTYY T
i) T| L_'woa L
TICTHY AN . UL T T IS T 3 8 SIMETY e ik vy g SeecaTn o1 1T et 1o o Ty
T N0 AT Fem-————————+— | 1 aLmmE DETICATUNSS froiq s 4 FUl i GLLAK 08 SLL DRI, LIWPR MERON SHCARAAACES N
. T T 4 Tl mlﬂ_ﬂﬂmlﬂ TV FLAT AR DEDRCATRD: Fall el Pumss veu
1 L OCATION POREVEN POR Tril FURFOM'S O Trinh PLAK
| IPWNKUM 0  fCRE FISCTL ELL YW O OTHER L
I:! VTIPS e Bl Sl vt e e
L [ .
HH e o S TR T
A ALDO B LUOR PO THI MUTUAL LIS ASD ACCOUMMIDATION OF Ay Syt YTt J e Lot
- O U O Ui Tl Al S LA T Bkt LowTS oo Ut ARTTICLLAN UTILTICE, G40 UL BT PLBLE
- I, BUROPDIATE TO THE PLLICS AND L2 COLMTTY
e 7 (DL COLMTY AN P YTLITAD (0 o ot e 10 PR 40 ER0F RIMEALD ki A AATS 0 s
2 FANCEY TRIES. we fan 08
= TERPTRE WA The Aannrirygsacd o lm-wn--xmm-urm
@ (LIS COUNTY AMD PLIBLIC UTLLTIE S BSAALL AT AL TRATE iobvl Tl PLi |, Mol (38 el sagh §OSmon 10008 FRM aia, iy LSRR
w THER REOPBCTIR §AMSLIWE Fh Toek Byt APCORETRUCToG BPPCTI AATRGH | ol COMMGHAA PRICIC! ¥ COMSBICn A Hagioc] ¢
LAETRNS ANO ACORD 10 DF MAKTRSG A, A MUATH OF Trloh ML T SYETTAR WTNOLT T
WPCIPATY AT A Tra? M slena HPisaparom Fiaow Mo Ll
§ AL§ WCOPICATICNS TO THt DOCUMPAT Beldl 08 Y
o AT AT R mary e R
oy Lo
Wl aly el el D i ]
af e
& - T o OB ATY A niX frery
& :nur-um--n_numzﬂ-wm
' | ": w
5 L T T TR kd g[ i
E[T———fm— -~ -=m-sm—m-me—-=Td |: E
x | i 1814 6 g =
% Cod! : H CounT O i
T2 .
!l! Py Trya A ! MR muuwm-mm-mmmmlumnn-n
tk e | e PSRy Meriaats o YL S 10 448 70 T8 PR WA L B el O
[} Lol =
1 FRPY PO 4 R 1 AT FERL
- e L 1T T Ty upuyupuppppap— !
[T T T T Ty
, o 7 e - = .
H S i
: Cmin mvunn Rt SR
.
1 Co Y
nry et
l:l e T [T
1
| worte
0 DALY RASYS PO 1700 ILPVIY L1408 COTRDBATE ITNTLM CH b nat
1 ummauﬂummm TGV ML
R AR ita ke
nemnan s 2t o Carea st metat o Lo PECAN TREE MEADOWS
S THmama® T8 i U™ Tt 8 1% AL CANECS PLOCCPLLS- i
HCORON TO Tril Tl T k) oG TALACKIONG | LLLONCS CO 14 574 ACRES
7 SAHG At § B7) 18 s Y T YA Pt -
N1 aaricy
T AL RV I & £ . BCHOCL LAND SURVEY
T 0 1837108 a2 R e HLLOTS sz 80 ARITRACT M 330
et -1 MoisEal, Ut Aa vl IVALLATION ShiaLL B PERPORMILO = & ] FlacTy OF
L RIS AMEVOS A RECRVHD fase oy WCAAOE TEXA 1o CLLIS COUNTY, TEGAS
T REBDENTIAL LOTS
et B T 0 ot T BOAQ 17 BOUTWEART OF Tl MUTHEAST v qusny T LU LG L SUbsorey
COMMPE O 113 PLAT PLOY « 108 14 fonte DRAGT HhamarN GARMMEY BV HENCH st
208 43 Vasar: MAY 1620 PASE 107 |
—_ — —




(/%)

PECAN TREE MEADOWS
(Lot #7 From The

Preliminary Plat)
\

228 .40' ™~ ~

™. PAGE40OF7




()

PECAN TREE MEADOWS
(Lot #7 From The
Preliminary Plat w/Added Details)

™~
A =
[ 10'DUE ™~ 2800+/— SF
~ ~ PROPOSED .
~ TSN SEPTIC AREA L
~ ~ Sa
~ %g 4
~ g T 8
. LOT7 ™~ X
S~ I ~. 1.448 ACRES ~
~ MFFE = 573.4 ™~
> h ™~ - ~ T ~
B ~ ~ = ~
8 . ~ ]
~.
~ - \EQ\
10' DUE RN B~
L ~ N

PAGE 5 OF 7



()

«hVLy
.*:_lnﬂd‘.'-, PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT El: E]
;X X 401 South Rogers Sireet | Waxahachie, Texas 75168 3
- B m - (169) 309-4290 | www.waxahachie co ts # - gy
" i Ly .
% i WATER UTILITY PROVIDER’S ENDORSEMENT E!?:&ﬁ'%
Tpper? -
Applicant Name: Timothy Crane Parcel ID #: 259093
Subdivision Name: _ pecan Tree Meadows
E iR o

The City of Waxahachie requires new lots in subdivisions have adequate water flow and pressure to
comply with TCEQ and latest Insurance Service Office (iSO} guidelines. Suhdivisions served by water
providers outside of the City of Waxahachie will need to ensure they can provide water flow/pressure
per TCEQ and fire flow per the latest ISO guidelines,

Applicants, please submit this form to your water provider for completion. This completed form must be
turned in at the time you submit your application packet to the Planning Department,

Contact Information:

Buena Vista-Bethel SUD (872) 937-1212
Carroll Water Company (872) 617-0817
Mountain Peak SUD (972) 775-3765
Rockett SUD {972) 617-3524
Sardis-Lone Elm WSC {972) 775-8566
Nash Foreston WSC {972) 483-3039

To be completed by the water utility provider:

Yes | No
} have reviewed a copy of the proposed plat. B Q
2. The platted lots fall within our CCN area. 2 Q
Our water system can provide water flow and pressure for domestic
3. . . a Q
service per TCEQ regulations.
4 Our water system can provide the water flow and pressure for o
* firefighting per iSO guidelines. &
5. The water line size servicing the lots is {n # __inches. a

SThuwre H. LEyFs M5 H-FORRESTOVN wsc
Print Nema of General Managar of water provider or Dasignas Nama of watar provider company

S—2 §~2402-0)

L

g 7
Signaturk of General Ml{anr of watsr provider or Dasignes Dats

Page 1 of1




("

Pecan Tree Meadows
RE: 7 Lot Plat on Pecan Tree Road in Eilis County

To whom it may concern, please allow this letter to suffice as my formal request for a variance
from any fire flow requirements which may be utilized or required on more dense housing
projects in the city limits of Waxahachie. We have completed months of engineering to satisfy
the County’s requirements and appreciate your swift approval of this project.

L 11¢ pao



)

Planning & Zoning Department
Zoning Staff Report

Case: SP-101-2020

MEETING DATE(S)

Planning & Zoning Commission:

City Council:

Aupgust 25, 2020

September 8, 2020

ACTION SINCE INITIAL STAFF REPORT

At the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, held August 25, 2020, the Commission voted 7-0 to
recommend approval of case number SP-101-18-2020, subject to staff comments.

CAPTION

Consider request by Dalton Bradbury, Acker Construction, for a detailed Site Plan Review for proposed
Office, Professional, and Administrative uses located within a Planned Development-1-Commercial
zoning district at 1340 and 1348 W. US Highway 287 Bypass (Property ID 238267) — Owner: BARBELL REAL
ESTATE LLC AND JAMES BELLER (SP-101-2020)

APPLICANT REQUEST

The applicant is requesting Site Plan approval to construct two multi-tenant office buildings on 1.381

acres,

CASE INFORMATION
Applicant:

Property Ownerfs):
Site Acreage:
Current Zoning:

SUBJECT PROPERTY
General Location:

Parcel ID Number(s):
Existing Use:

Development Histary:

Dalton Bradbury, Acker Construction
Barbell Real Estate LLC
1.381 acres

Planned Development-1-Commercial

1340 and 1348 W. US Highway 287 Bypass
238267
Currently Undeveloped

N/A

Page1of4




()

Table 1: Adjoining Zoning & Uses

IR Zoning Current Use
North PD-1-C Hunter’s Cove Apartments
East PD-1-C Office Use
South N/A U.S. Highway 287
West PD-1-C RVG Plaza (Medical Facility)
Future Land Use Plan: Mixed Use Non-Residential
Comprehensive Plan: Similar to Mixed Use Residential, land designated with this land
use are intended for a mixture of nonresidential and residential
uses. The only difference would be that Mixed Use
Nonresidential has a greater percentage of nonresidential
components than residential. Specifically, 80 percent of the
acreage or square footage of proposed developments are
required to be nonresidential with the remaining 20 percent of
the acreage or square footage allocated to residential.
Southlake’s Town Center is an example of Nonresidential Mixed
Use.
Thoroughfare Plan: The subject property is accessible via Chenault Dr. and a cross
access connection via the eastern subject property.
Site Image:

PLANNING ANALYSIS

Purpose of Request:

The applicant is requesting Site Plan approval to construct two multi-tenant office buildings on 1.381
acres.

Page 20of 4




()
Proposed Use:
The applicant is proposing to construct twe multi-tenant office buildings at the corner of RVG Pkwy and
U.S. Highway 287 bypass. The two proposed buildings will consist of 7,400 sq. ft. {1348 W. US Hwy. 287;
along west boundary of the property) and 6,800 sq. ft. (1340 W. US Hwy. 287; along east boundary of
the property). The building located at 1340 W. US Hwy. 287 is intended to only have two tenants within
the building. However, the number of tenants that will occupy the building located at 1348 W. US Hwy.

287 is currently unknown, At the time of this report (9/2/2020), the applicant is currently unaware of
the tenants that will occupy the buildings.

Note: Due to the tenants to occupy the buildings currently being unknown to staff, staff has informed
the applicant that if a Specific Use Permit (SUP) is required, it will be the applicant/tenant responsibility
to apply for the required permit.

Table 2: Development Standards (Commercial)
**tems highlighted in bold do not meet the City of Waxahachie requirements

Standard City of Waxahachie RVG Plaza {Commercial) | Meets Y/N
Min. Lot Area (SF) 5,000 60,180 Yes
Min. Lot Width {Ft) 50 240 Yes
Min. Lot Depth (Ft) 100 250 Yes
Min. Front Yard (Ft.) 25 25 Yes
Min. Side Yard (Ft.) 15; 20 (adjacent to ROW)} | 25ft. adjacent to RVG Yes
Pkwy.; 15ft. adjacent to
Eastern boundary
Min. Rear Yard (Ft.} 20; 25 {adjacent to 30 Yes
residential)
Max. Height 3 stories 1 story Yes
Max. Lot Coverage (%) 40 23.6 Yes
Parking 50 74 Yes
1 per 300 sq. ft.

*Additional Note: The building is proposed to be constructed of brick veneer.

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the details provided in this Staff Report and the present status of the documents subject to the
request, the Planning and Zoning Department recommends:

O Denial

d Approval, as presented.

& Approval, per the following comments:

1. Per the applicant’s request, a mutually agreed upon Development Agreement will
be required for the development.

2. Due to the tenants to occupy the building currently being unknown to staff, staff has
informed the applicant that if a Specific Use Permit (SUP) is required, it will be the

applicant/tenant responsibility to apply for the required permit.

Page3of4




()

3. Revise the Site Plan to show the sidewalk (along 287 bypass) is
consistent/continuous with the adjacent property. Also, due to adjusting the
location of the sidewalk, revise the Landscape Plan to show that the landscaping on
the property is consistent with the relocation of the sidewalk.

4. Revise the Landscape Plan to show the landscaping inside of the property (near 287

bypass). Currently, the plan shows landscaping in the ROW.

Revise the Site Plan to show Chenault Dr. instead of RVG Alley Road.

6. All staff comments must be addressed and approved by staff prior to any building
permits being issued.

e

ATTACHED EXHIBITS
1. Development Agreement
2. Site Plan
3. Llandscape Plan
4. Elevation/Facade Plan

APPLICANT REQUIREMENTS
1. If approved by City Council, applicant can apply for building permits from the Building and
Community Services Department.

STAFF CONTACT INFORMATION

Prepared by: Reviewed by:

Colby Collins Shon Brooks, AICP

Senicr Planner Director of Planning
ccollins@waxahachie.com sbrooks@waxahachie.com

Page 4of 4




12,

STATE OF TEXAS § DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
§ FOR RVG PLAZA (OFFICE USE)
COUNTY OF ELLIS §

This Development Agreement for RVG Plaza (Office Use) (“Agreement”) is entered
into between Acker Construction (“ACKCON") and the City of Waxahachie, Texas (“City”).
ACKCON and the City are sometimes referred herein together as the “Parties” and individually

as a “Party.”

Recitals:

1. ACKCON is the owner of approximately 1.381 acres of real property generally
located at 1340 and 1348 W. U.S. Highway 287 Bypass, Property ID Number: 238267, in the
City of Waxahachie, Texas (the “Property”), for which he has requested a Site Plan (“SP™) to
allow for development of two multi-tenant office buildings. The Property is currently zoned
Planned Development-1-Commercial by the City, and is anticipated to have a Site Plan reviewed
on September 8, 2020.

2. The planned use of the Property is to create two multi-tenant office buildings
within an existing Planned Development zoning district. The detailed SP review process is
utilized to ensure that the Property would develop in a manner that meets the City’s desired
development standards, as well as providing ACKCON with agreed-upon and negotiated
standards consistent with his business objectives.

3. As is reflected by the public records of the City, significant discussions and
negotiations between ACKCON and the City of Waxahachie staff have occurred during various
meetings, in an effort to obtain an agreed-upon and negotiated set of zoning and development
standards to be reflected in the detailed RVG Plaza (Office Use) SP Packet.

4. This Agreement seeks to incorporate the negotiated and agreed upon zoning and
development standards as contractually-binding obligations between the City of Waxahachie and
ACKCON, and to recognize ACKCON’s reasonable investment-backed expectations in the RVG
Plaza (Office Use) SP Packet.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above and foregoing premises, the
benefits to each of the Parties from this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration,
the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, the Parties do hereby agree as
follows:

Section 1.  Incorporation of Premises. The above and foregoing Recitals are true
and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.

Section 2. Term. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution of this
Agreement by the last of the Parties to do so (“Effective Date”). This Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect from the Effective Date until terminated by the mutual agreement of all of the
Parties in writing (“Term”).



(¥

Section 3. Agreements. The Parties agree as follows:

Incorporation of Zoning and Recognition of Investment-Backed
Expectations: The negotiated and agreed upon zoning and development
standards contained in the RVG Plaza SP Packet, which incorporate by reference
the general zoning regulations of the City of Waxahachie zoning ordinance, are
hereby adopted and incorporated into this Agreement as contractually-binding
obligations of the Developer.

The Developer agrees to:

(A)The Site Plan, Landscape Plan, and Elevation/Facade Plan shall conform as
approved by the City Council under case number SP-101-2020.

(B) The masonry exterior for the building shall consist of brick veneer.

(C)If a Specific Use Permit (SUP) is required, it will be the applicant/tenant
responsibility to apply for the required permit.

(D) The development shall maintain compliance with all Federal, State and Local
regulations; including, but not necessarily limited to, all applicable standards and
regulations of the City of Waxahachie Municipal Code and City of Waxahachie
Zoning Ordinance.

In consideration of ACKCON’s agreement in this regard, the City of Waxahachie
agrees that ACKCON has reasonable investment-backed expectations in the RVG
Plaza (Office Use) SP Packet, and that the City of Waxahachie may not
unilaterally change the zoning and development standards contained in the RVG
Plaza (Office Use) SP Packet without impacting ACKCON’s reasonable
investment-backed expectations.

Section 4. Miscetlaneous.
A, This Agreement and any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be

governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without reference to
its conflict of law rules. In the event of any dispute or action under this Agreement, venue for
any and all disputes or actions shall be instituted and maintained in Ellis County, Texas.

B. [t is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the terms hereof are not intended to and
shall not be deemed to create a partnership, joint venture, joint enterprise, or other relationship
between or among the Parties.



(/)

C. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or
unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is the intention of the Parties to this
Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a
provision shall be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar
in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable.

D. The rights and remedies provided by this Agreement are cumulative and the use of any
one right or remedy by either Party shall not preclude or waive its right to use any or all other
remedies. Said rights and remedies are given in addition to any other rights the Parties may have
by law statute, ordinance, or otherwise. The failure by any Party to exercise any right, power, or
option given to it by this Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance with the terms of this
Agreement, shall not constitute a waiver of the terms and conditions of this Agreement with
respect to any other or subsequent breach thereof, nor a waiver by such Party of its rights at any
time thereafter to require exact and strict compliance with all the terms hereof. Any rights and
remedies any Party may have with respect to the other arising out of this Agreement shall survive
the cancellation, expiration or termination of this Agreement, except as otherwise expressly set
forth herein.

E. All exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated herein by reference for all purposes
wherever reference is made to the same.

F. Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and obligations of the Parties, as well
as any rights and benefits of the parties, pertaining to a period of time following the termination
or expiration of this Agreement shall survive termination or expiration.

G. This Agreement is made subject to the existing provisions of the City of Waxahachie, its
present rules, regulations, procedures and ordinances, and all applicable laws, rules, and
regulations of the State of Texas and the United States.

H. The undersigned officers and/or agents of the Parties hereto are the properly authorized
persons and have the necessary authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Parties
hereto.

L. This Agreement may be only amended or altered by written instrument signed by the
Parties.
I The headings and captions used in this Agreement are for the convenience of the Parties

only and shall not in any way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions of
this Agreement.

K. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject
matters covered in this Agreement. There are no other collateral oral or written agreements
between the Parties that in any manner relates to the subject matter of this Agreement, except as
provided or referenced in this Agreement.



(4

L. This Agreement shall be recorded in the real property records of Ellis County, Texas.
This Agreement and all of its terms, conditions, and provisions is and shall constitute a
restriction and condition upon the development of the Property and all portions thereof and a
covenant running with the Property and all portions thereof, and is and shall be binding upon
ACKCON and ali of his heirs, successors, and assigns and the future owners of the Property and
any portion thereof; provided, however, this Agreement shall not constitute an obligation of or be
deemed a restriction or encumbrance with respect to any platted residential lot upon which a
completed structure has been constructed.

{Signature Pages Follow}



("%

EXECUTED by the Parties on the dates set forth below, to be effective as of the date
first written above.

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS

By:

Michael Scott, City Manager

Date:

ATTEST:

By:

City Secretary

ACKER CONSTRUCTION:

By:

Date:




()

STATE OF TEXAS §

§
COUNTY OF ELLIS §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day of 2 2020,
personally appeared MICHAEL SCOTT, City Manager of the City of Waxahachie, Texas,
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein
expressed.

[Seal] By:

Notary Public, State of Texas

My Commission Expires:

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF ELLIS §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day of . 2020,
personally appeared ACKER CONSTRUCTION, known to me to be the person whose name is
subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for
the purposes and consideration therein expressed.

[Seal] By:

Notary Public, State of Texas

My Commission Expires:;



(%)

Lot 1

!
Biock B 1

AVE PLAZA, o
i |

RSO |

D&M DAVIS & McDILL, Inc.

ENGINLERE




VICINITY MAP: wt 1o dus

ABBREVIATIONS LEGEND:

@ - PROMATY CORNER A
FOUND Wi

= SPOT ELEVATIONS

™o, 4y
SR - ATEEL AOD WM
SP. - STELL PR WH
WE - UTRITY CASEMENT M
MNP - UTRITY ROLE ;Wuu“

WATER VALVE
Shapadd & UTRITY

IR Io berve whafien, i, AN Fighty Fpmproed

¢

LANDSCAFE TABULATIONS:

THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS

= b3 EIITINE TAEER G Thed RO YT <
INTERIOA LANDSCAPE AREA

- o
1+ gya.ce eAOPAD B IS Mk W PRI MTENCA AN [y o S it fowns
1 NS Tl MO WITROA LADICAM uail o T bt aet (13m0 e, e TR TR
3. OME 11| CANOFY TAER PEA $00 BF. OF ALOLRED LAMCACAM AEA 118) CANOPY TREES T CADPY TRETE

el {1ha* CAUPYR TR TRCK PIR B0 L. STAETT OF PRONTADE

Wt R T eTH

" TS INTTRMETE waikd
+ 707 0° MDA TO M A/T s MLOW THE TO DF WALES LM CUMA,

Cowin WAk ekt 0 LD o YV rtaS DT D Tt DAL WIS,
LANDSCAPE ARSAE TO F 1000 BVRKLATILE WATH A Mﬂlm AUTOUATI WL TIN BrITILS
i gprand g LI

PARKING LOT LANDSCAPE TN N, BARATD BPACTS: T4
=

MAINTENANCE NOTES:

oot AP, LAMDREAHE

8.7, OF LARDSCAM MA PARLSA BPACT

F TWOIE TRTL o CaL. A 00 L0, 09 M OMIALD PARRIG LT (31 touan, 4 caurtn

2. T {10 SR MY 440 4.7, OF 1) GLIND P M LT ARLA Lros mewmn

10 0P, LAMOCAPS | 1) PEA CITY DADRAICY 81 CTION §9.9.7 . Toof g foukil, fof A Tt CONTPMET
WA TU ] B SR RATE s yaiaTices, i GUIMIC LANSBCAPIM PlLL 3
" Do e &t 47 e} i, Yo vads LU (DA FRs.
(LTRSS ven HETRETIG. w0 T Aged. witiOsed, « Hi#9ea BE5 WAR LMD M ACCORDANCT AT §TANC ARD
Ty dmacticty G D uY ey LANDICARL MATOA 40 BT A
[Py PuCH LTI S 4 1 OF LANOICANNG. (ANDTCAMD AMAS Sniil
LIFT Hell O Thagee (1) il AN TR B AL OF PLANTE NOT A PART i Trdl
LD AP, Aot bea THALT MAPTAIED % & HE & THT AND SACWING CONDITION 41
W il FOM Tp HARON OF Tesl YEAR. PRAL HEADE OR LINES WWRCH ANE BAGKEW AMD
Atber WalbN Dol B AEPLACIDACS MSADNATELY TO PIVINT WARTY BF WATEAL

4. thal (11 LSBIRITONT A CINT: TREL PIA 150 P, OF MICAAED sisccrvrrrees | con acoawt s
LANOBCAPY LA .
N OMI 111 BRI PR 40 £F OF ALGUIALO LAMD ICAP ANA e 1tm Ay e
i LANDSCAPE PLAN N : N
5. 195 00 WIDURED LANDICAPY ARSA WAL M DRONOCOVER 08 @ croumneann| oo 05 e
GENERAL SCAPING NDTES: GENEHAL LAWN NOTES:
_— R g | SEMEEALLANDICAPING KOTES: SENERAL Lawn NOTES: U
oica Soiom T- gt IATitied ! POTORED BT LEGUTE FOR CEICRPANCHE. BUSVTY [ATA BP LRNTNG ) COMTRACRON Bl LLAVE Lav ANA1 1° BELOW AL A0 SAADE PROA T0 TO#R04
BUFFEAYARD & STREET TREES -  Tora mtatadd: a1 b Ty 8 e A i wuincne WoNKsa BT . gmu::um-:uml LPALTO LAY ek CONTOL A MERLATID (LT L.
—— ———— . EOuTAACTER TuALL FROVIDY A MOMVLM I WLOPT & HAY FOM STRUCTUNE. by bt
PR T8 STMIT A Th M PEMAMAT A4, P00 b an0BEA [y ser e catetant | 5 LEATEARLAN T RECKVE TOPIOR 3" BLOW Medd SBaioall) SRASY by FLanTiNd ANIAY A 1 BEIDW  ooriied L7 TOP ANG BOTTON OF OIS oRkol, comcT
e 018 0 . Pl et i e g 470 LA wran wiTth AT F1A10,
% PO L R L T ¢ o, 1ncal 180 Yo Tt Tt w1 1- LA ARLA RULLL B PN GRADED, RGATIN ITECHE D SSUUNITE § MTYLID A bt A
1, 1 |ARpSCAM FPE0 1) ) o AT BLDS podh W APEAS e 88 BEP A TES BY FTEE OO, WD 4 M A b m 4980 LA, DI CLOD3. OTICK . CONCAITY SPGAY, TG GH Tty
BETALLIO 3440101 1O AL, O G, E1 TTLIL 5D AT 50 DERVEL ArR FULCHSA TORIOR, ANG LAW BeyTALLA

DUARANTIE UTTASUBUINT DF ACCEPTARE Fuk? 4804 div) VA dPLACEVINY FROW L 3TAL

e
. mvﬂlv“nmnmlunumt TR (OEY 08 0 Ang:
TOUCHNNL TOP DA I JOBNT§ I sukinl) wiThe TEIMOL

» i L MO MAACH 1, DVIR-EED BHANLIOA DAARE SO0
TV WY RYCORADRL AT & AATE 0 POt s FAMDS P18 GE TSI VB SUARE FETE

GENERAL_NOTES:

14 SUEDACE MATEINALD Tl WLEY MM FTAGARGS ANO BPYCIRCATRCGE FYA T CITY 04

1. mu LIGHTieQ. (LRSI, ey HEMGHT T SLALT Wit Thl ALOLIN NINT S OF THE CITY OF
WAANRACHE TLaAN

2 LANOTC A TG b ety
ADRIETED AT T DF PRRAY,

PLAL. TAEE LOCATIONE

AU(_';}LS-I: _2-!,}229_

LOT 6-BLOCK A

=

RVG PLAZA

g o Ve, T - i Commay

S
a
Z
=T
LP







G




Memorandum

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council

From: Tommy Ludwig, Assistant Ci ager

Thru: Michael Scott, City Manage

Date: September 4, 2020

Re: Bid Award - 2020 Asphalt Street Rehabilitation

On Tuesday September 08, 2020, a bid award associated with the 2020 Street
Rehabilitation Program will appear before the City Council in an amount of
$543,313.00. Staff is also recommending City Council approve funding for a
project contingency in the amount of $30,000.

This project is part of the annual street rehabilitation program. The project
includes scarification, re-compaction and cement stabilization of the existing
pavement and subgrade and repaving the asphalt driving surface for the
following streets:

Street name from to

BUFFALO CREEK DR INDIAN TRACE CHIEFTAIN

INDIAN TRACE LN/KIOWA LN BUFFALO CK BUFFALO CK (HORSE SHOE)
BUFFALO CREEK CIR BUFFALO CK END

PETERS ST GRAHAM PARK SCHOOL HOUSE
MCKENZIE ST WILLAM BROWN

BARGER DR BROWN BROWN {HORSE SHOE)
4TH ST BROWN DUNN

W. ROSS ST BROWN US77/FERRIS

1|Page



2,

Bids were received from nine contactors. Reynolds Asphalt and Construction
Company was the lowest responsible bidder with a total bid of $543,313.00.
This bid was $7,080.15 less than the next lowest responsible bidder. This
project is a planned expense and the City budgeted $600,000 for construction in
the Public Works and Engineering Department’s Operations and Maintenance
Budget.

I am available at your convenience should you need any additional information.

Tommy Ludwig

2|Page



R i e B il

%

BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

11910 Greenville Ave., Suite 600 Dallas, Texas 75243  Phone (214)361-7900  www.bhcllp.com

JOIUIN W, BIRKHOFP, PR

GARY C. HENDRICKS, PE, RFLS.
JOE R CARTER, P&

MATT IIICKRY, BB

ANDREW MATA, JW_, PR

JOSEPH T ORAJCWSKL LI PE
DOREX B, CHANGY, PR, RPLS

CRAIGM KEGRKUOHP, P, September 1, 2020
WSTINK.IVY, PE.

Mr. James Gaertner, P.E., CFM

Director of Public Works & Engineering
City of Waxahachic

P.O. Box 757

Waxahachie, Texas 75168-0757

Re: 2020 Asphalt Strect Rehabilitation Program
Bid Summary & Evaluation

Dear Mr. Gaertner;

We have checked the bids received at 2:00 p.m., Wednesday, August 26, 2020, for the 2020 Asphalt Street
Rehabilitation Program. We are enclosing two (2) copies of the Bid Summary.

Reynolds Asphalt & Construction of Euless, Texas submitled the low bid in the amount of $543,313.00.
References were included on recent similar projects completed by Reynolds for the Cities of Farmers Branch,
Grand Prairie, and Prosper. The contacts provided for each of the references reported that Reynolds was
knowledgeable, communicated well, and successfutly completed the projects indicating they would hire them

again.
Accordingly, based on the information we have available to us, we recommend that the City accept the bid
from Reynolds Asphalt & Construction and award them a contract in the amount of $543,313.00 for
construction of the 2020 Asphalt Street Rehabilitation Program.
We arc available 1o discuss our evaluation further at your convenicnce.

Sincerely,

Joseph T. Grajewski, P.E.

Enclosures
Cc:  Mr. Jim Lockart, P.E., CFM

TBPE Firm 526 TBPLS Firm 100318-00

L CLERKCAL Weee 2020127 Aspholt Street Reluh 2020 etiers K Bl Evalwotsndocx



(%)

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS
2020 Asphalt Street Rehabilitation Program

BID SUMMARY
Bids Received on Wednesday, August 26, 2020 at 2:00pm

Contractor Total Amount Bid
1) Reynolds Asphalt & Construction 5 543,313.00

P.O. Box 370

Euless, Texas 76039

Ned Tawkersley

817-267-3131
ntawkersley@reynoldsasphalt.com

2) Texas Materials Group dba Texas Bit 3 550,393.15

420 Decker Drive Ste 200
Irving, Texas 75062

Ronald D. Stinson, Jr.
214-741-3531
ronald.stinson@texasbit.com

3) Pavecon Public Works, LP b 604,710.75

3022 Roy Orr Blvd

Grand Prairie, Texas 75050
Daniel Kilman
972-263-3223
russellh@pavecon.com

4) Anderson Asphalt & Concrete Paving $ 613,468.50

11343 Mathis Street
Dallas, Texas 75229
Pamela Thompson
214-352-3400
coryh@aacpaving.com

5) Leland & Bradlee Construction, Inc. 3 668,492.50

4815 Whitehurst Drive

Longview, TX 75602

Bradlee Smith

903-236-4872
lelandbradleeconstruction@gmail.com

\CLERICAL \Wax\2020-127 Asphalt Street Rehab 20208 pecy\ Tech-Spec\07-PEBS-2



@),

6) Reliable Paving, Inc. $ 701,440.00

1903 North Peyco Drive
Arlington, Texas 76001
Charles M. Long
817-467-0779
jeremiah@reliablepaving.com

7) Peachtree Construction, Ltd. $ 701,833.75

5801 Park Vista Circle
Keller, Texas 76244

J. Barry Clark
817-741-4658
jbeclark@peachtreecon.com

8) J & K Excavation 3 736,430.43

P.O. Box 886

Italy, Texas 76651

Joshua Trees
972-923-2250
jkexcavation@yahoo.com

9) FNH Construction, LLC $ 971,735.00

4099 McEwen Ste 600
Farmers Branch, TX 75244
Candace Gillespie
469-248-0301
candace@fnhconstruction.com

ACLERICAL'Wox\2020-127 Asphalt Street Rehab 2020\Specn\Tech-Spec\d7-P&BS-2



)
56

Rawhide i

, in‘l Asphalt Street Rehabilitation Y4y
- 2020 :
EXHIBIT

Legend
=== Street Rehabilitation

.'\ :
013 025 0.5 Miles @ T i




Memorandum

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council

From: Tommy Ludwig, Assistant Cj ager

Thru: Michael Scott, City Manag :

Date: September 4, 2020

Re: Lower Mustang Creek Parallel Force Main Project

On Tuesday, September 8, 2020 a bid award associated with construction of
the Lower Mustang Creek Parallel Force Main will appear before the City
Council in an amount of $2,404,205.95 with Wilson Contractor Services, LLP.
Staff is also recommending City Council approve funding for a project
contingency in the amount of $50,000.

The City received bids from nineteen proposers. Privcon Developments, Inc.,
an Arkansas company, was the apparent low base bidder. However, in
accordance with state law a non-resident bidder must meet the same
requirements for a non-resident bidder submitting in their home state. In the
case of Arkansas, the resident (in state bids) are reduced by 5% for
comparison to non-resident bids. As a result, Circle H Contractors, LP was
determined to be the lowest base bidder.

There was an added alternate associated with this project for the installation
of a fiber optic cable conduit. Wilson Contractor Services, LLC was
determined to be the low bidder for the combined base bid and added
alternate bid. Staff is making a recommendation to Council to award both the
base bid and the added alternate, and as a result Wilson Contractors Services,
LLC is the lowest responsive bidder for this project.

1|Page



%)

The recommended bid is approximately $84,000 below the project budget.

This project is a planned expense and was included in the FY 2019-20 Bond
Sale.

As a reminder, this project will install approximately 15,000 linear feet of 20-
inch diameter PVC force main sewer pipe. The limits of the project are from
the Lower Mustang Creek Lift Station, extending northwesterly upstream
terminating just west of Parks School House Road at the intersection of 287
Bypass. This project will provide for the pumping capacity of the existing
Lower Mustang Creek Lift Station and the future expansion of the lift station
to service the Cole Creek and Grove Creek Basins.

I am available at your convenience should you need any additional
information.

Tommy Ludwig

2|Page



23,

BIRKHOFF, HENDRICKS & CARTER, L.L.P.
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

11910 Greenville Ave,, Suite 600 Dallas, Texas 75243 Fax (214) 461-8390 Phone (214} 361-7900
JOHN W. BIRKHOFF, P.E,
GARY C. HENDRICKS, P.E.
JOE R, CARTER, PE.
MATT HICKEY, P.E,
ANDREW MATA, JR., P.E
JOSEPH T. GRAJEWSKI, H1I, PE.
DEREK B. CHANEY, PE.
CRAIG M. KERKHOFF, P.E. September 1, 2020
JUSTINR. VY, PE.

Mr. James Gaertner, P.E., CFM

City Engineer TRANSMITTED VIA EMAIL
City of Waxahachie

401 S. Rogers
Waxahachie, Texas 75168

Re: Lower Mustang Creek Parallel Force Main (CIP Project WW-6B)
Recommendation for Council Award

Dear Mr. Gaertner:

We have checked the bids received at 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 25, 2020 for the Lower Mustang Creek
Parallel Force Main project and enclosing one (1) copy of the Bid Summary and Itemized Bid Tabulation for
the City’s reference and files. A total of twenty (19) sealed bids were received, opened, and read aloud. The
sealed bid submitted from Resicom, Inc. was received at 3:16 p.m. and therefore disqualified.

Privcon Developments, Inc., of Jacksonville, Arkansas submitted the apparent low base bid in the amount of
$2,240,234.45. However, in accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Subchapter A, a non-
resident bidder submitting a bid in Texas must meet the same requirements for a non-resident bidder
submitting a bid in their home state. In the case of Arkansas, the resident bids are reduced by 5% for
comparison to the non-resident bids. Please see the enclosed Vendor’s Compliance to State Law form and
associated Arkansas Resident Bidder Preference requirements (Arkansas Code 19-11-259) submitted by
Privcon Developments, Inc.

The Bid Summary presented herein shows both the actual bid amount submitted by the resident bidders and
the 5% reduction in the bid amounts (in parenthesis) for bid evaluation purposes. The base bids submitted by
Circle H Contractors, LP, of Midlothian, Texas and Atkins Bros. Equipment Company, Inc. were corrected for
mathematical errors made in the bids they submitted.

On this basis, Circle H Contractors, LP submitted the lowest comparative base bid in the amount of
$2,153,699.35 (Actual bid of $2,267,051.95). Wilson Contractor Services, LLC, of Denton, Texas submitted
the lowest comparative base bid plus additive alternate bid in the amount of $2,283,995.65 (Actual bid of
$2,404,205.93).

Based on our review of the low bidder’s statement of qualifications and past performance record provided by
their references, it is our opinion Circle H Contractors, LP and Wilson Contractor Services, LLC have the
equipment and experience to properly pursue this project,

TBPE Firm 326 TBPLS Firm 100318-00

Jclericallwax\2017-184 lower mustang parallel force main {Shju il dation docx




Mr, James Gaertner // y)

Award Recommendation
September 1, 2020
Page 2 of 2

Therefore, we recommend the City either:

1. Accept the Base Bid from Circle H Contractors, LP. and award them a contract in the amount of
$2,267,051.95 for construction of the Lower Mustang Creek Parallel Force Main project, or

2. Accept the Base Bid plus Additive Alternate Bid from Wilson Contractor Services, LLC and award
them a contract in the amount of $2,404,205.95.

We are available to discuss our evaluation and recommendation further at your convenience.

Sincerely,

Justin R, Ivy, P.E.
Enclosures
cc:  Mr. Tommy Ludwig
Mr. David Bailey

TBPE Firm 526 ACEC Wellness Firm = Better Decisions - Better Designs TBPLS Firm 100318-00
i \cericalwan\2017-164 lower mustang paralled force msin (#6b)Uenentk) dation docx




Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, L.L.P.

&

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS

LOWER MUSTANG CREEK PARALLEL FORCE MAIN

CIP PROJECT NO. 6B - BASE BID

BID SUMMARY - BASE BID

9/1/2020

Sorted by Lowest to Highest Base Bid (Adjusted for Non-Resident Vendor Compliance)

Notes:
1 Bold, italic text highlighted in ycllow arc bids adjusted for comparison purposes. Adjusted 5% per Arkansas State law.
2 Corrected Circle H bid (Item #119) total from $40 to $40,000 based on per unit bid price.

Contractor

. Circle H Contractors, LP

P.O. Box 220
Midlethian, Texas 76065

Brad Owens
§72-723-0802

& &4

Total Amount

Base Bid

2,267,051.95
(2,153,699.35)

-]

Total Amount,
Add. Alt. Bid

200,216.00
(190,205.20)

Total Amount Bid

&

2,467,267.95
{2,343,904.55)

Wilson Contractor Services, LLC
3985 Mingo Road

Denton, Texas 76208

A.A. Martinez

940-243-1174

=]

2,344,819.43
(2,227,578.46)

on

59,386.52
(56,417.19)

&

2,404,205.95
{2,283,995.635)

. Vaca Underground Utilities, Inc.

6602 Mount Houston Road
Houston, Texas 77050
Everardo Vaca
832-275-7241

o4

2,347,991.00
(2,230,591.45)

&3

161,863.00
(153,769.85)

-]

2,509,854.00
(2,384,361.30)

Privcon Developments, Inc.
909 West Main Street, Box 180
Jacksonville, AR 72076

Jerry Smith, Jr.

501-605-4161

2,240,234.45

81,869.24

2,322,103.69

. KIK Underground, LLC

106 Hillside Drive
Lewisville, Texas 75057
Tom Koble
469-426-4690

o &

2,359,142.00
(2,241,184.90)

o

175,646.00
(166,863.70)

o

2,534,788.00
(2,408,048.60)

. Blue Star Utility

2600 Chambers Street
Venus, Texas 76084
Jonathan Lamey
817-539-9950

&«

2,400,000.00
(2,280,000.60)

&

144,338.00
(137,121.19)

-5

2,544,338.00
(2,417,121.10)

Mountain Cascade of Texas, LLC
11729 East FM 917

Alvarado, Texas 76009

Andrew McCulloch
§17-783-3094

&

2,490,100.00
(2,365,595.00)

&5

69,553.00
(66,075.35)

-]

2,559,653.00
(2,431,670.35)

JACLERICAL Wax\2017-164 Lower Mustang Parallel Foree Main (#6b):Specs Tech-Spec'06-P&LBS-2 alsx



Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, L.L.P.

@

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS

LOWER MUSTANG CREEK PARALLEL FORCE MAIN

CIP PROJECT NO. 6B - BASE BID

BID SUMMARY - BASE BID

9/112020

Sorted by Lowest to Highest Base Bid (Adjusted for Non-Resident Vendor Compliance)

Notes:

1 Bold, italic text highlighted in ycllow are bids adjusted for comparison purposes. Adjusted 5% per Arkansas State law.
2 Corrected Circle H bid (Item #119) total from $40 to $40,000 based on per unit bid price.

8. Blackrock Construction
1475 Heritage Parkway Ste 113
Mansfield, Texas 76063
Donny Gamblin
512-392-5725

& &9

2,570,922.00
(2,442,375.90)

$
3

117,657.00
(111,774.15)

$

2,688,579.00
(2,554,150.05)

9. Excel Trenching
2228 SE Loop 59
Carthage, Texas 75633
Derrick Gage
210-823-6778

L=

2,589,388.30
(2,459,918.89)

L-£]

96,724.60
(91,888.37)

[~

2,686,112.90
(2,551,807.26)

10. Ark Contracting Services, LLC
420 South Dick Price Road
Kennedale, Texas 76060
Mark North
817-478-7400

o

2,639,000.00
(2,507,050.00)

&

205,546.00
(195,268.70)

L

2,844,546.00
(2,702,318.70)

11. Wicker Construction Co.
P.0. Box 6765
Shreveport, LA 71136-6765
James S. Townsend
318-688-0610

L)

2,741,466.60
(2,604,393.27)

24

103,355.80
(98,188.01)

&3

2,844,822.40
(2,702,581.28)

12.BAR Construction, Inc.
P.O.Box 10
Dallas, Texas 75146
Isidro Arrambide, Jr.
972-227-3287

L4

3,052,704.00
(2,900,068.80)

&

117,659.00
(111,776.05)

L2

3,170,363.00
(3,011,844.85)

13.Belt Construction of Texas, LLC
P.O. Box 867
Texarkana, Texas 75504
George Bass
870-772-7216

L4

3,122,396.00
(2,966,276.20)

=

112,536.00
(106,909.20)

&

3,234,932.00
(3,073,185.40)|

14.8YB Construction Co., Inc.
421 Compton Avenue
Irving, Texas 75061
Brian Wood
972-399-1066

b5}

3,300,042.00
{3,135,039.90)

=]

56,423.20
(53,602.04)

(=]

3,356,465.20
(3,188,641.94)

15. Thalle Construction Co., Inc.
10110 East FM 917
Alvarado, Texas 76009
Stephen Kohler
817-728-3801

&

3,313,855.00
(3,148,162.25)

=]

149,510.00
(142,034.50)

(5]

3,463,365.00
(3,290,196.75)

J'CLERICAL Wux'2017-164 Lower Mustang Paralc] Foree Mai (#5b) Specs Tech-Speci06-PLBS-2.xlsx



(9

Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, L.L.P. 9712020
CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS

LOWER MUSTANG CREEK PARALLEL FORCE MAIN
CIP PROJECT NO. 6B - BASE BID

BID SUMMARY - BASE BID
Sorted by Lowest to Highest Base Bid (Adjusted for Non-Resident Vendor Compliance)
Notes:
1 Bold, italic text highlighted in yellow are bids edjusted for comparison purposes. Adjusted 5% per Arkansas State law.
2 Corrected Circle H bid (Item #119) total from $40 to $40,000 based on per unit bid price.

16.McKee Utility Contractors, Inc.
2319 West Main Street
Prague, OK 74864
Shane McKee
405-567-3666

17. Atkins Bros. Equip. Co., Inc.
P.O. Box 990
Midlothian, Texas 76065
Mike Atking
972-775-7955

18, Joe Funk Construction, Inc.
11226 Indian Trail
Dallas, Texas 75229
Rusty Norris
972-243-7141

19. SEMA Construction, Inc.
2331 Mustang Drive Ste 300
Grapevine, Texas 76051
Steve Hathaway
817-251-5001

3,528,208.60 | § 85,804.00 | § 3,614,012.60
(3,351,798.17} 8 (81,513.80)| § (3,433,311.97)

& B9

=]

3,579,993.00 109,208.00 3,689,201.00
(3,400,993.35)| § (103,747.60)| § (3,504,740.95)

n &3
o5

3,592,986.60 191,994.72 3,784,981.32
(3,413,337.27)| § (182,394.98)| 3 (3,595,732.25)|

&
=]

& &9

-]

4,508,967.00 277,970.00 4,786,937.00
(4,283,518.65)| 8  (264,071.50)| § (4,547,590.15)

oy &n
o

JCLERICAL'Wax'2017-164 Lower Mustang Parallel Foree Main (#6b)Specy' Tech-Speci06- PEBS-2 alsx



Memorandum

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council
From: Tommy Ludwig, Assistant Ci ager
Thru: Michael Scott, City Manage

Date: September 4, 2020

Re: Bio-solids Disposal Contract

On Tuesday, September 8, 2020 a contract with Waste Connections for the
disposal of bio-solids (de-watered sludge) from the Wastewater Treatment
Plant will appear before the City Council for consideration.

This contract will provide the City a disposal rate of $17.44 per ton for a five
year period at the Turkey Creek Landfill located in Alvarado, Texas. The City
has budgeted sufficient funds in both this year and next year's budget to
cover the rate in the new agreement. The City currently utilizes the Turkey
Creek Landfill for the disposal of bio-solids through its existing contract for
trash and recycling services with Waste Connections. As a reminder staff is
currently reviewing proposals for a new trash and recycling contract, and staff
recommends separating this service from the general trash and recycling
agreement.

Staff has researched other area landfills which accept bio-solids, and their
associated rates (Potential Landfill Location Exhibit). Through this analysis
staff has determined that that Waste Connections/Turkey Creek Landfill is still
the most advantageous bio-solids disposal facility for the City,

I am available at your convenience should you need additional information.

Tommy Ludwig

1|Page



/5 McComas Bluff
$28.50 per ton
Duncanuille
Desoto
Gedar Hil et Skyline
& Landfill $35
Mansfisld I‘ ton
L=y ]
Lillian
MidicAhion
Pakrar
Venuo
ECD Landfill
Abarado $37.0I’ ton
Turkey Creek Ro
Landﬁ‘;l Und Trip
$17.44 per'ton ahfatl
Ennigy
1o
<54 mES ROV angres
&R
GrandsEW Q_d)ob Bardwrel
“-\\\é Fomeston
@\
N
oo
Landifill

italy
Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user

) 25 5 10 Miles community
| 1 1 i | ) [ |

Potential Landfill
Location Exhibit

Routes

=== 48 miles Round Trip
= 31 Miles Round Trip
s 41.4 miles Round Trip
= 49,2 miles Round THp
= 58.4 miles Round Trip

Landfills
Accepts Sludge

Yes
@

Sie Wastewater Treatment Plant




0%

SPECIAL WASTE DISPOSAL AGREEMENT

Special Waste Profile Number: TC-18-833

Customer Billing Information Waste Connections Subsidiary (“Service Provider”)
Name: City of Waxahachie Texas Regicnal Landfill Company, LP
Address: —0OBox 757 dba Turkey Creek Landil
9100 South I-35 W
e Waxahachie Alvarado, Texas 76009
State: X Zip: 75168
Phone: 469-309-4322 Fax:

1

Contact; Rita Munoz

Project: Biosolids

Additional Information:

Special Waste Service. Subject lo the terms and conditions contained herein, Service Provider and Customer agree to be legally bound hereby and Service Provider agrees to
accept at its Facility, Acceptable Waste (hereinafier referred to as “Specinl Waste™ or “Waste™) delivered by Customer, and which is acceptable to Service Provider as herein
provided. Customer agrees to deliver one hundred percent (106%) of the Special Waste incorporated under the special waste profile number,

2. Acceptable Waste. Only those Special Wastes described in Section 3 herein and in any Special Waste Profile(s) which number is identical to the contract number referenced
above, and which Profile(s) are hereby incorporated by reference herein, and which Waste is subsequently approved by Service Provider and is otherwise in accordance with all
laws, regulations and permits, shall be acceptable for disposal at the Facility (“ Acceptable Waste™).

3. (A) Rates for Disposal:

Waste Disposal Method Disposal Rate: Fees / Taxes / Misc. Teansportation
Class i Landfill $16.50 per ton $0.94/ton TCEQ Fee N/A

Additional Information

Customer shall also be liable for all taxes, fees, or other charges imposed by federal, state, local or provincial laws and regulations

County and State of origin of Waste Ellis

(B) Incorporatign by Reference. In addition Lo Special Waste Profile(s) and the Terms and Conditions of Special Waste Disposal Agreement set forth on the reverse side
of this document, the following documents are incorporated by reference into this Agreement as if fully set forth herein

1)
2)

Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date provided for below the parties’ signature line and shall continue for 60 months pursuant ta the applicable
special waste application.

SERVICE PROVIDER AND CUSTOMER, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL OBLIGATIONS CONTAINED HEREIN, AGREE THAT THIS IS A LEGALLY
BINDING AGREEMENT WHICH 18 SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH ON THIS PAGE AND ON THE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS

DOCUMENT.

X X

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE (AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE) SERVICE PROVIDER SIGNATURE (AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE)
X X

CUSTOMER NAME AND TITLE (PLEASE PRINT) SERVICE PROVIDER NAME AND TITLE (PLEASE PRINT)

X X

DATE DATE



Terms and Conditions ( zg Waste Disposal Agreement

The Arrcement. This Special Waste Disposal Agreement (this “Agreament’™) for the disposal of Special
Waste shall consist of this Agreement, riders to the Agreement {if any) snd any appEcation, perntit and/or
approval that may be spplicable to such Waste,

Wagte Agcepleqd at Facility Customer sepresents, warrants and covenants that the Waste delivered to
Service Provider at its Facility Imeuﬂder will be Acupublc Wasie and will not contain any umccepuble
quantity of hazardous al 1als or sul of 1oxi¢c waste or
substances, as defined by lppllublu federal, state, local or provincial laws or regu]aumu Any Wme
which doet not meet these requirements shall heremafier be referred fo as ]

Customer shall in all matters relating to the collecti and di | of the Waste b d
comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, reguhmns. rules and orders regarding the same.
The word "Eagitity™ shall mean any landfill, transfer station or other localion used to iransfer, process or
otherwise dispose of such Waste.

Speciat Wape. Customer represents, warrants and coverants that the Waste delivered 10 Service Provider
hereunder (i) will not contain any Special Waste that is not specifically described on any application which
is attached hereto or which is subsequently spproved by Service Provider, (it} will meet the material
description as set forth in any spplication and otherwise in all significant respects and (11} will not contain
Unacceptable Waste The parties may incorporste additional Special Waste as pant of this Agreement if
pror to delivery of such Waste 10 Service Frovider, Customer has provided an application for such Waste
and Service Provider has approved disposal of such Waste within the limitations and conditions contained
in Service Provider's written notice of approval nfSpeual Waste Dnlponl Tnle 10 ary and all (i) Special
‘Waste (not specifically described on a Special Waste herewath), and
{1i) Unaceeptable Waste, handled or disposed of by ‘Service Provider dull ar all vites remain with
Customer and any agem of Customer (il an agest is involved)

Righty of RefupalReieciion Customer shall ingpecs all Waste st the place(s} of collection and shall
remove any and all Unaccepiable Waste,  Service Provider has ihe right to refuse, ot to feject after
acceplance, sy load(s) of Wante(s) dglnmed 1o its Facility including if Service Frovider believes
Customer has breached (or is breachi warmanties, covenanis of agreements
hereunder, or any lpplu:nhle federal, state or qul Inw:. regulations, rules ar ordery, even if anly a portion
of such Waste load is unacceptable.  Service Provider shall have the right to intpect all vehicles and
cnnumus of Waste haulers, including Customer’'s vehicles, in order to determme whether the Waste is

ptable Waste or U ble Wasic pursusnt to this Agreement and all applicable federal, state and
bcl.l laws, rules and regulations. Service Frovider's exercise, or fatlure to exercise, its rights hereunder
shall not operate to relieve Customer of ity mpmtbt!ma or Ilnht]uy under this Agreement. Customer
shall be responsible for, and bear all and d; incurred by Service anda- aa

ruu!tol‘dwUmepubleWmemdmth: foadi _md ] of U piable Waste disposed in the
Facility.  Service Provider, may also, in its sole d Ttequire C to promptly remove the
Unacceptable Waste.

Limited License to Enter. This Agreernent provides Customer with a license o enter the Facility for the
lisrated purpose of, end only to the extent necessary fise, off-loading Acceptable Waste at the Factlity in
the manner directed by Service Provider. Except in an emergency. Custorer’s personne] shall not leave
the immediate vicinity of their vehicle. ARer off-loading the Wlsle, C 's§ | shall promptly
leave the Facility. Under no ¢ shall C orits p | engage in zny scavenging of
Waste o other materials at the Fasility Service Provides reserves the right to make and enforce reasonable
tules and ! g the of of the Facility, the conduct of the dnvers and others on the
Fn::lny premises, quantities and sources of Waste, end any other matters necessary or desirable far the

safe, legal end efficient operation of the Facility including, but not limited to, speed limia on haul roads
imposed by Service Provider, and the wearing of hard haty and other persanal protection equipment by all
individuals allowed on the Facility premises. Customer agrees to conform 1o such rules and regulations
as they may be established and amended froem time 1 time. Service Provider may tefuse to accept Waste
from and shall deny an entrance Ecense 1o, any quu:lnmer s persannel whom Service Provider believes

is under the influence of alcohal or nlim G shall be solely responsible for
its employees and sut perft g their obligations tn a safe manner when a1 the facility of
Service Provider

Charees and Pavinent Payment shall be made by Customer within thirty (30) days afer receipt of
invoice from Service Provider. In the event thal any amoun 1y overdue, Service Provider may |em1|we
this Agreement. Customer agrees 1o pay & finance charge equal 10 the maxi inerest rate p

by law. Customer shall be hable for afl taxes, foes, ot other charges imposed upon the dspusal of the
Wasts by federal, state, local or provincial laws and regulations. Service Provider, from time to time, may
madify its rales upon thirty (30} days written notice to Customer

[ s obl rept wirtanties and covenants reglrdmg the Wuta
delivered and all i ities shall survive of this Ag Should C
default in any of its nbllgmulu hereunder, then Service Provider may immediately lenminate !hu
Agreement and Customer shall be liable for all costs and damages incurred by Service Provider,

Duiver's Knowledee and Autherjty. Customer and co that 1ts drivers who
deliver Waste m Service Pruwd:r s Facility have been advised by Customer of Service Provider's
prohibition on d ies of | Is or di materials or suly oF toxic
waste or sub or any other U plable Waste 1o the leny of Setvice Provider 8 resthictions on
delivenes of Special Waste 10 the Facility, of the definitions of “Hazardous Waste™ and “Hazardous

" at pravided by spplicable federal, siste and local law, mules and segulations and “Sgecial
Waste™ 2s provided herein, and of the terms of this license to enter Service Provider’s Facility

Ipdemnification Custwomer shall lm‘kmmfy defmd and hold harmless Service Provider and its
subsidianes, affilistes and parent corp hcable, and their respective officers, d

lenders, employees, subcontractors and agents fmmlnd npnm any nnd l.“ claims, sum. losses, liabilisies,
assessments, damages, fines, costs and ys' fees anising under
federal, state or local laws, regulations or otdmmcgs. or rdmng ta the content of the Wasie, or -rmn;nu
oformnonnemonwuhmbmch of this Agreement nrmsmgumnflhe 1i of willful mi

of Customer or Cummcrl ployees, sgents, P thereof, including,
without li the neghg et portat lnd", 1 of Waste by Cusiomer or
C ‘s employees, agents, sub of rep ives thereol.  Customer shall also be

ble for i d insy tesung, study and snalysis costs made y due 1o bl

couoerm of Ssmce Providet a3 to the content of the Waste, following discovery of Unacceptable Waste.
This & ifi and other cblig stated in this Section 13 shall survive the termination of this

Agreement.

Insurynce Customner shall maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement the
followmg types of insurance in at lesst the amounts specified below:

Coverneey Minimam Ameunts of jnsurance
Worker's Compensation Statutory
Employer's Liability $1,000,000 per incident
General Liability $2.000,000 combined single limit

Automobile Liabulity $2,000,000 combined single limit

All insurance will be by insurers authorized to do business in the stase in which the Facility is located.
Prioe to Cumomer being allowed on Facility premises, Custotner shall provide Senvice Provider with

CUSTOMER: X

20.

21

afi of i or other y evidence thas such insurance has been procured and iy in
force. Customer warrants that it wall secure the above mini of i from sy
transportation of the Waste 10 the Facility

. Eailore 1o Perform  Neither party hereto shall be lable for ity Failure w perform hereunder due to

circumstances not its fault and beyond iy reasonable comml. including, but not limited to, strikes or other
labor disputes, riots, pmuts. civil disturb hanges in law, fires, floods, compliance with

i wmher. lack of required natura] resources, or a1 of God
aﬂ'acta'm cither pany heteto. In the event of any of the circumstances pmvided for in the preceding
sentence, including, but not limited to, whether any federnl, s1ate or local court or govemmental avthority
takes any action which would (i) close of restrict operations at the Facility, (ii) Bmit the quantity or prohibn
the disposal of Waste st the Facility, of (iii) limt the ability of or prohibit Customer from delivering Wane
to the Facility, Service Provider shall have the right, st ifs option, to reduce, suspend or terminate
Custorwt's access to the Facilaty mmmim:ly without pmr nnnce and without any additional liabilities
between the parties, other than C det Neither Party 13 required
hereunder to settle any labor dispute lgmnsl its own bai;udc:nwnl.

Other Terminatjon The occurrence of any of the following muﬂulllhommnmemmnnf
deﬁuhbyCuslommdslal gw:S:maePlovtdalhcng!ﬂm ly inate this A

{i) A petiion for or bankrupicy filed by or aganst Customer
{ii} Failure by Customer to pay any amoums due 1o Service Provider
{iti) Any breach by Customer of any of its oblig [ to the Agr

Customer shall be liable for and shall indennnify, defend and hold harmless Service Provider from any
losses, claims expenses of damages incurted by Service Provider as a result of temination hereunder

Anfenment  Customer may not assign, transfer of otherwise vest in any other Service Provider, entity or
person, in whale or in part, any of its rights or obligations undet the Agr wathout the prior written
consent of Service Provider, provided, however, that Service Provider may without ary such prior writien
consent, atsign its tights and/os oblig, under the A to & subsidiary or afiline

Bleht of Disposal This Agreement does not grant any rights to dispose of Acceptable Waste other than
in accordance herewith, Addunm]ly. the ability to dispose of Accepiable Wasie af the Facility may be
limited at &ny time, and from lume o time, by Service Provider in cannection with the Facility's permut(s),
and cap in addition to applicable laws, niles, and regulations. Service mederraervu
the right to immedistely terminate access 10 the Facility by C and C ‘s p ] in the
event of breach or violation by Customer of any of the terms of this Agreement, Service Provider's
operating rules of paytnent pokicies or any applicable laws or regulations

Continuing Complipnce Custamer has & continuing obligation to mform Service Provider of any new
information, or information net previeusly provided to Service Provider by Customer which may sffect
the acceptability of the Wasts by Service Pm\'ldﬂ Further, Customer shall comply with ail Service
Provider requests for evidence of Ci | with the tertns of the Agreement
including but not limited to the following: (‘) pwwdang new, updated Watte profiles on the Waste(s)
offered for disposal or, {ii) providing appropriate centification that the Waste being offered for disposal is
accurasely reflected I:y the appropriate application o, (jii) re-sample the Waste ¢t Customer’s expense if
reasonable cause exitts as to its acceptability under the term of this Agreement or, {iv) allow Service
va:der to re-sample the Waste if reasonable cause exists as 10 its acceptability under the terms of thus
{end C shall be ible for all costs and d with such 1
|f such Waste i determined to be Unlcuphble Waste), or {v} all of the above.

Nstires  All notices heretn provided for shall be idered as having been given upon being placed in
the mal, centified postage prepaid addressed to Service Provider or Customer at the address herein set
forth in this Agreement or 10 such other address as may be given to the other party in writing.

Ldguidated Damages (n the event that this Agreemenl i3 terminated by Customer in a manner not in
accordance with 561100 4 heteol, or terminaled due to a breach of this A by C €

shall pay, as Liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the grester of an smount equal 1o six [6] months’
service charges or Customer"s most recent lmnlhly charge mubiplied by six (6). Customer shall be given

:milt for any d pay made h bowever, in computing the amount owed as lLiquidated
der € kewwledges that this liquidated d: clause is ble and 15
licable to recover d refated 1o its i in devel of Service Provid

and hiring of employees undertaken by Service Prowider W0 service its cutomets, including Customer
This Inqu:d.ued damages clause in no way relieves Customer from its obligations and liability for other
cost or d 1 set forth elsewhere in this A

Miscellageous
(i} This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State in which the Facility is located.

(i) No waiver ol a breach of any of the oblig ined in the Agt shall be construed to be
& waiver of any prior or sucgeeding breach of the same obligation or of any other obligation of this
Agreement

{ii)) No modifi release, discharge or waiver of any provision or obligation hereof shall be of any
force, or effect, unless in wriling signed by all parties to this Agreement.

(iv) Customer shall treat as confidential and not disclose 1o cthers during of subsequent to the tertms of
this A

except as is ln perform this Ag:eemem, orto wm)ly with atry spplicable
Ilwnnegu.l.nmnmy fe ion {including any techni n, experience or date) regarding
Service Provider's plans, progr llnu. d msu, or

which may come within the Imnwledge of Customer or its enployees in the paﬁonmnce of this
Agreement, without in each instance securing the pnior wrirten consent of Service Provider

(v} 1f any term, phrase, obligation or provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, tlegal or
unenforceable in any respect, this Agreemen shall remain in effect and be construed without regard
2 such term, phrase, obligation or provision.

(v} Thiy Agr the emitire undh ding b the parties, replacing and di
any pnor agrectents between the parties, and shall be binding upon all pama hereto, their
hews, repr i and assigns.  Any provision, term or condition in any
acknowledgement, purchase order or other response by Customer which i in addition to or different

from the p of this Agr shall be deemned objected o by Service Provider and shall be
olno effect

{vii) Customer represents, warrants and covenams that i ts md. during the tettn of this Agteement will
remain, in compliance with and will perform in obli 10 all applicable laws and

regulations and shall indeimnify, defend and hold harmless Service Provider fmmmyhrudl thereof.

{viii) It is the understanding and agreement of the panies that Service Prowider iy an independent
contracior, and is not &n xgent, nor an authonzed representative of Customer

SERVICE PROVIDER: X



(%)

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS, TO MODIFY AND ADOPT NEW
REGULATIONS ON SOLICITATION ACTIVITIES BY REPEALING
EXISTING CHAPTER 23, “PEDDLERS,” AND REPLACING IT WITH A
NEW CHAPTER 23, “SOLICITATION ACTIVITIES”; PROVIDING A
PENALTY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Waxahachie, Texas (the “City”) is a Home Rule municipality
possessing the full power of local self~government, pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas
Constitution, Section 51.072 of Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and the City’s Home
Rule Charter; and

WHEREAS, regulations on peddlers and other solicitation activities in the City were first
adopted by the City Council in 1950, and have since been amended and modified multiple times
by the City Council as it deemed fit; and

WHEREAS, the City Council possesses, pursuant to § 311.001 of the Texas
Transportation Code, as amended, the exclusive control and power over public streets, highways
and alleys of the City; and

WHEREAS, there are serious safety issues involved when individuals solicit in or on
public streets, street rights-of-way and other areas of vehicular passage, including such concerns

as the physical safety of those who solicit as well as the possible impeding of traffic flow on public
streets; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 215.075 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended,
the City Council has the power and authority to license any lawful business or occupation; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that there has been and continues to be an ever-
increasing amount of commercial solicitations within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the regulation of such solicitation is in the best
interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City; and

WHEREAS, based upon United States Supreme Court jurisprudence, the City
acknowledges it is limited in its ability to regulate solicitation by religious, political and charitable
institutions and groups; and



(&)

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council not to abridge any individual’s or group’s
recognized First Amendment rights; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to fully respect such First Amendment
rights in this Ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION 1. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct and are
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.

SECTION 2. Existing Chapter 23, “Peddlers,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Waxahachie, Texas, is hereby repealed in its entirety and is replaced with a new Chapter 23,
“Solicitation Activities,” to read as follows:

“CHAPTER 23 SOLICITATION ACTIVITIES
Sec. 23-1. - Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Agent means a person who undertakes to transact some business or manage some affair for another
person by the authority and on the account of the latter,

Badge means photographic identification permit issued by the police department of the City.
Canvasser means a person who engages in canvassing activities.

Canvassing or canvassing activity means the act of either (1) traveling either by foot or vehicle,
going door-to-door, house-to-house, building-to-building; or (2) occupying space in or traveling
on or through any public place in the City, by personally contacting persons to communicate in
any manner, whether orally, by written or printed materials including, but not limited to, handbills,
leaflets, hand signing or by any other method, direct or implied, for any purpose other than selling
or taking orders for goods, wares, merchandise or services or collecting money.

Charitable purpose shall mean philanthropic or other nonprofit objectives, including the benefit
of poor, needy, sick or handicapped persons; the benefit of a patriotic or veterans® association or
organization; the benefit of any fraternal, social or civic organization; or the benefit of any
educational institution.

Consumer means an individual who seeks or acquires real property, service, money or credit for
personal, family or household purposes.

Consumer transaction means a sales transaction in which one or more of the parties is a consumer.



()

Group exhibir means an association of two (2) or more temporary vendors under the auspices of a
promoter, which association is formed for the purpose of simultaneously conducting the business
of the temporary vendors upon a common site or premises, such as a flea market, fair, carnival or
similar operation.

Handbill means any printed or written matter, any sample or device, dodger, circular, leaflet,
pamphlet, paper, booklet, or any other printed or otherwise reproduced original or copies of any
manner.

Handbill distribution means traveling either by foot or vehicle, going door-to-door, house-to-house
or building-to-building without personally contacting persons to distribute or leave on or at each
premises a handbill for any purpose.

Home solicitation transaction means a consumer transaction for the purpose of goods, services, or
realty, payable in installments, or in cash, in which the merchant engages in a personal solicitation
of the sale to the consumer at a residence, and the consumer’s agreement or offer to purchase is
given at the residence to the merchant. A home solicitation transaction shall not include a sale
made pursuant to a preexisting revolving charge account or retail charge agreement, or a sale made
pursuant to prior negotiations between the parties at a business establishment at a fixed location
where goods or services are offered or exhibited for sale, or a sale of realty in which transaction
the purchaser is represented by a licensed attorney or in which the transaction is being negotiated
by a licensed real estate broker.

Local business means a business located and operated within the corporate limits of the City.
Merchant means a party to a consumer transaction other than the consumer.

Permit means the permit required under the authority of this chapter to engage in the business of
solicitation.

Person means an individual, corporation, trust, partnership, association or other legal entity.
Police department means the police department of the City.

Political purpose shall mean any form of communication related to a political issue, a particular
candidate to a position or nonpartisan office, a political committee, as defined by state law, or to a

political party.

Promoter means the person, firm, corporation or organization responsible for conducting a group
exhibit.

Religious purpose shall mean the use of money or property for the support of a church, religious
society or other religious sect, group, or order.

Residence means any separate living unit occupied for residential purposes by ene or more persons,
contained within any type of building or structure,



(/%)

Solicitation shall mean engaging in or attempting to engage in home solicitation transactions. This
term does not include solicitation or fundraising of any sort by a political, religious or charitable
institution or group, unless indicated otherwise.

Solicitor means all persons, as well as their agents and employees, engaged in or attempting to
engage in solicitation.

Temporary vending activities shall mean business within the City at a site for which definite
arrangements have not been made for the hire, rental or lease of such premises for at least one
month in or upon which such business is to be operated or conducted.

Temporary vendor shall mean a person who is transacting or conducting temporary vending
activities.

Sec. 23-2. - Permit required.

(@) It shall be unlawful for any person to go upon any residential premises and ring the
doorbell, or rap or knock upon the door, or create any sound in a manner calculated to attract the
attention of the occupant of the residence for the purpose of engaging in or attempting to engage
in a home solicitation transaction without first obtaining a permit from the City.

(b)  Each person engaging in or attempting to engage in a home solicitation transaction must
have a permit issued under the terms of this chapter, and such permit shall be personal to the
applicant and shall not be reproduced, assigned, or transferred to any other person. Any such
attempted transfer or reproduction shall render the permit void.

Sec. 23-3. - Exemptions.

(a) The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to public utility companies or others operating
under franchises granted by the City, insurance sales people, real estate sales people, and others
licensed by the state, political groups or organizations which are subject to financial disclosure
under state or federal law.

(b)  The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to commercial agents dealing with local
business establishments in the usual course of business.

Sec. 23-4. - Permit application.
(@)  Any person desiring to make home solicitation transactions within the City shall submit an
online application, on a form provided by the City on the City’s website, to the police department

for a permit. The application shall contain the following:

(1)  The name, social security number or taxpayer identification number, date of birth
and address of the person applying and desiring to make home solicitations;



@)

3)

4)

&)

©

Q)

®)

)

(10)

(11)

(%)

Whether the permit is for an individual (natural person), a partnership, or a
corporation; and

(a) If an individual, the individual’s business or residence address and
telephone number;

(b)  Ifapartnership, the name of all partners, the principal business address, and
telephone number of each partner;

(c) If a corporation, the person registering must state whether the corporation
is organized under the laws of the state or is a foreign corporation, the
mailing address, business location, telephone number, names of all officers
and directors or trustees of such corporation, and, if a foreign corporation,
the place of incorporation and registered agent for the state;

The approximate time period within which the solicitation is to be made, giving the
date of the beginning of the solicitation and its projected conclusion;

The names of other communities in the state in which the applicant has made home
solicitations during the last six months;

The nature of the merchandise to be sold or offered for sale or the nature of the
services to be furnished;

Whether such applicant, upon any order obtained, will demand, accept or receive
payment or the deposit of money in advance of final delivery;

Whether the applicant or any person employed by the applicant to solicit, has been
convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude in the past five
years;

Names, addresses, telephone numbers and social security numbers of the adults
who shall be responsible for supervising any solicitor;

Names, addresses and telephone numbers of two (2) persons as references,
excluding relatives and persons living with the applicant;

Valid state driver’s license number or a state-approved identification card number
with a photograph;

All applications shall be on a form provided by the City and shall be sworn to or
affirmed. The application shall be filed for public inspection.

(b)  The application must be signed by the applicant if the person is an individual; if the person
applying is a partnership, by a general partner; if the person applying is a corporation, by an officer.
The individual signing the application will sign a statement that he has carefully read the



(w

application and that all the information contained therein is true and correct upon penalty of
perjury.

(c) If a person applying for a permit intends to contract with, employ or otherwise retain
individuals to engage in solicitations, a separate permit must be obtained for each individual.

(d) Said permit shall expire after thirty (30) days, after which the solicitor shall submit a new
application and go through the same process again.

Sec. 23-5. - Investigation by the police department.

(@  Upon submission of permit application, the police department shall obtain the applicant’s
fingerprints and run a background check on the applicant as the police department deems
necessary.

(b)  The police department is authorized to investigate the affairs of any person soliciting in
violation of this Ordinance, either before or after the filing of an application for a permit for

solicitation.

(c)  The police department may deny a permit to any applicant for good cause, which shall
include, but is not limited to, the following:

(1)  being a fugitive from justice;

(2)  submitting an incomplete permit application;

(3)  providing false and/or misleading statements on the permit application; or

(4)  conducting solicitation activities contrary to regulations contained herein.
Sec. 23-6. - Application fee.
A nonrefundable fee of thirty-five dollars ($35.00), for investigation and administration of the
application, shall be charged. Such fee shall not be prorated and shall be paid at the time the
application is made and shall not be returned to the applicant, regardless of whether a permit is
issued. All fees are subject to change upon Ordinance of the City Council.
Sec. 23-7. - Issuance of a photographic permit (badge).
After review of a permit application to determine its compliance with this chapter, and within ten
(10) working days of the receipt of the same, the police department shall either issue a permit in
the form of a badge, or notify the person applying that the application does not comply with this

chapter, and specifically point out what information or explanation has not been furnished that is
required before a permit can be issued.



(/&)

Sec. 23-8. - Requirement that badge be displayed.
Upon issuance of the badge by the police department, the following requirements shall apply:

(1)  The badge issued shall be in such form and requirement so as to fully identify the
person soliciting and will bear a photographic likeness of the solicitor and shall
contain an expiration date.

(2) The badge shall be valid only for the person to whom it is issued (nontransferable).
Each solicitor is also required to carry a state-approved picture identification card
or a state driver’s license as proof of identification.

(3)  The badge issued shall be carried/displayed by the solicitor in plain sight while he
is engaged in soliciting.

(4)  The badge is and shall remain the property of the City and may be revoked and
required to be surrendered at any time for any false or misleading information on
the permit application, for violation of any City ordinance, including the provisions
set forth in this chapter, and for violation of any state or federal law.

Sec. 23-9. - Regulations.

(a) Every solicitor shall identify himself as a solicitor upon approaching a person at a residence
and explain his purpose, whether it be direct sales, solicitation of orders, or the demonstration of
goods or merchandise, or any combination of such purposes.

(b)  Solicitors shall conduct solicitation activities, canvassers shall conduct canvassing
activities, and handbill distributors shall distribute handbills only on Monday through Saturday.
Solicitors, canvassers, and handbill distributors may only conduct solicitation or canvassing
activities, or distribute handbills from sunrise to sunset, as officially determined on that day by the
National Weather Service,

(c) A person commits an offense if the person engages in solicitation activities, canvassing
activities or handbill distribution at any time on a Sunday, New Year’s Day, July 4th, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Eve Day or Christmas Day.

(d) Subsections (b) and (c) of this section shall not apply to a visit on the premises as a result
of a request or an appointment made by the occupant.

(e) A person commits an offense if the person engages in solicitation activities - including
solicitation or fundraising activities by any institution or group organized for a political, religious
or charitable purpose, canvassing activities, or handbill distribution at any premises with a posted
notice that such activity is not welcomed or invited. It shall be presumed that there is notice that
solicitation, canvassing activity, or handbill distribution is not welcomed or invited when there is
exhibited in a conspicuous place on or near the main entrance to the residence, a weatherproof sign



(%)

or card containing the words “No Solicitors,” “No Trespassing,” or words of similar meaning in
letters not less than two-thirds of one inch in height.

O No person engaged as a solicitor, canvasser, or handbill distributor shall remain or linger
at a residence after having been verbally informed by the resident that they are not welcome.

(g0 No person may engage in solicitation activities, canvassing activities, or handbill
distribution in an aggressive or intimidating manner. The term “aggressive or intimidating manner”
means:

(1)  Blocking the path of a person who is the object of the activity; or

(2)  Following behind, ahead or alongside a person who walks away from the solicitor,
canvasser, or handbill distributor after being solicited, approached, accosted or
offered a handbill, leaflet or any other item.

(h) A person commits an offense if the person engages in solicitation activities, canvassing
activities, or handbill distribution and distributes, deposits, places, throws, scatters, or casts a
handbill at a residence except by:

(1)  Handing or transmitting the handbill directly to the owner or occupant then present
in or upon the premises; or

(2)  Without using adhesive or tape, placing or depositing the handbill in 2 manner that
secures the handbill and prevents it from being blown away, except that mailboxes
may not be used when the use is prohibited by federal postal laws or regulations.

(i) A person commits an offense if the person secures a handbill at a residence in the manner
described by subsection (h)(2) of this section:

(1)  inaplace that is more than five feet from the front door of the residence; or

(2)  When another handbill has already been left or secured at the residence and has not
been removed from the outside of the residence.

{)] No solicitor, or any person working on his behalf, shall shout, make any outcry, blow a
horn or whistle, ring a bell, or use any sound device, including any loud-speaking radio or sound
amplifying system, upon any of the streets, avenues, alleys, parks or other public places of the
City, or upon any private premises of the City where sound of sufficient volume is emitted or
produced therefrom to be capable to be plainly heard upon the streets, avenues, alleys, parks or
other places, for the purpose of attracting attention to the location or to any goods, wares or
merchandise which any person permitted pursuant to this chapter proposes to sell. This subsection
also prohibits the use of any audio device for the purpose of attracting customers to retail
establishments or merchants,



(&)

Sec. 23-10. - Consumer’s right to cancel.

(@)  Inaddition to other consumer rights to revoke an offer or to rescind a transaction, or to any
other remedy for a merchant’s breach, the merchant shall provide to the consumer the right to
cancel a home solicitation transaction made in person in which the consideration exceeds $5.00,
until midnight of the third business day after the day on which the consumer signs an agreement
or offer to purchase in a home solicitation transaction.

(b)  Every merchant in a home solicitation transaction made in person in which the
consideration exceeds $5.00, shall furnish the consumer with a fully completed receipt or copy of
any contract pertaining to the home solicitation transaction at the time of its execution, which is in
the same language as that principally used in the oral sales presentation and which shows the date
of the transaction and contains the name, address and telephone number of the merchant, and in
immediate proximity to the space reserved in the contract for the signature of the consumer or on
the front page of the receipt if a contract is not used, and in bold face type of a minimum size of
ten points, a statement in substantially the following form:

“YOU, THE BUYER, MAY CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO
MIDNIGHT OF THE THIRD BUSINESS DAY AFTER THE DATE OF THIS TRANSACTION.
SEE THE ATTACHED NOTICE OF CANCELLATION FORM FOR AN EXPLANATION OF
THIS RIGHT.”

(¢) A merchant in a home solicitation transaction made in person in which the consideration
exceeds $5.00, shall furnish each consumer, at the time he signs the home solicitation transaction
contract or otherwise agrees to buy realty, consumer goods or services from the merchant, a
completed form in duplicate, captioned “Notice of Cancellation,” which shall be attached to the
contract or receipt and easily detachable, and which shall contain in bold face type of a minimum
size of ten points the following information and statements in the same language as that used in
the contract:

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION
(enter date of transaction)

YOU MAY CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION, WITHOUT ANY PENALTY OR OBLIGATION,
WITHIN THREE BUSINESS DAYS FROM THE ABOVE DATE. IF YOU CANCEL, ANY
PROPERTY TRADED IN, ANY PAYMENTS MADE BY YOU UNDER THE CONTRACT OR
SALE, AND ANY NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENT EXECUTED BY YOU WILL BE
RETURNED WITHIN TEN BUSINESS DAYS FOLLOWING RECEIPT BY THE
MERCHANT OF YOUR CANCELLATION NOTICE, AND ANY SECURITY INTEREST
ARISING OUT OF THE TRANSACTION WILL BE CANCELED.

IF YOU CANCEL, YOU MUST MAKE AVAILABLE TO THE MERCHANT AT YOUR
RESIDENCE, IN SUBSTANTIALLY AS GOOD CONDITION AS WHEN RECEIVED, ANY
GOODS DELIVERED TO YOU UNDER THIS CONTRACT OR SALE; OR YOU MAY IF
YOU WISH, COMPLY WITH THE INSTRUCTIONS OF THE MERCHANT REGARDING
THE RETURN SHIPMENT OF THE GOODS AT THE MERCHANT’S EXPENSE AND RISK.



(/%)

IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO RETURN THE GOODS TO THE MERCHANT AND IF THE
MERCHANT DOES NOT PICK THEM UP WITHIN 20 DAYS OF THE DATE OF YOUR
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION, YOU MAY RETAIN OR DISPOSE OF THE GOODS
WITHOUT ANY FURTHER OBLIGATION.

TO CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION, MAIL OR DELIVER A SIGNED AND DATED COPY
OF THIS CANCELLATION NOTICE OR ANY OTHER WRITTEN NOTICE, OR SEND A
TELEGRAM, TO (Name of merchant) AT (Address of merchant’s place of business) NOT
LATER THAN MIDNIGHT OF (Date).

I HEREBY CANCEL THIS TRANSACTION.
(Date)
(Buyer’s Signature)

(d)  Notification by mail shall be considered given at the time mailed as evidenced by the
postmark; notification by telegram shall be considered given at the time filed for transmission; and
notification by any other writing shall be considered given at the time delivered to the merchant’s
designated place of business.

(¢)  Before furnishing copies of the notice of cancellation to the consumer, a merchant shall
complete both copies by entering the name of the merchant, the address of the merchant’s place of
business, the date of the transaction, and the date, not earlier than the third business day following
the date of the transaction, by which the consumer may give notice of cancellation.

) A merchant shall not include in any home solicitation transaction contract or receipt any
confession of judgment or any waiver of any of the rights to which the consumer is entitled under
this chapter including specifically his right to cancel the transaction in accordance with the
provisions of this chapter.

(g2) A merchant in a home solicitation transaction in which the consideration exceeds $5.00,
shall inform each consumer orally, at the time the consumer signs the contract or purchases the
goods or services, of the consumer’s right to cancel.

(h) A merchant shall not misrepresent in any manner the consumer’s right to cancel.

(i) A merchant shall honor any valid notice of cancellation by a consumer and, within ten
business days after the receipt of the notice, a merchant shall;

(N refund all payments made under the contract or sale;

(2)  return any goods or property traded in, in substantially as good condition as when
received by the merchant;

10



(1)

(3)  cancel and return any negotiable instrument executed by the consumer in
connection with the contract of sale and take any action necessary or appropriate to
terminate promptly any security interest created in the transaction; and

(4)  restore improvements on real property to the condition in which he found them
unless requested otherwise by the consumer,

)] No merchant shall negotiate, transfer, sell or assign any note or other evidence of
indebtedness to a finance company or other third party prior to 12:00 midnight of the fifth business
day following the day the contract was signed or the goods or services were purchased.

(k)  No merchant shall fail, within ten business days of receipt of the consumer’s notice of
cancellation, to notify the consumer whether the licensee intends to repossess or to abandon any
shipped or delivered goods.

O This section shall not apply to a home solicitation transaction in which the consideration
does not exceed $25.00 if:

¢} The consumer may within a reasonable time:
(a) cancel the order;

(b) refuse to accept the goods when delivered without obligation to pay for
them; or

(c)  return the goods to the seller and receive a full refund for any amount the
consumer has paid.

(2)  The consumer’s right to cancel the order, refuse delivery or return the goods
without obligation or charge is clearly and legibly printed on the face or reverse
side of the sales ticket or clearly and legibly printed in or on the package.

Sec. 23-11. - Exhibiting card prohibiting solicitors.

(a) A person, desiring that no merchant or other person engage in a home solicitation,
canvassing activity or handbill distribution at his residence, shall exhibit in a conspicuous place
upon or near the main entrance to the residence, a weatherproof sign or card, not less than three
inches by four inches in size, containing the words, “NO SOLICITORS,” “NO TRESPASSING.,”
or words of similar meaning in letters not be less than two-thirds of an inch in height.

(b)  Every merchant, canvasser, or handbill distributor upon going onto any premises upon
which a residence is located shall first examine the residence to determine if any notice prohibiting
soliciting, canvassing, or handbill distribution is exhibited upon or near the main entrance to the
residence. If such notice is exhibited, the merchant, canvasser, or handbill distributor shall
immediately depart from the premises without disturbing the occupant, unless the visit is the result
of a request made by the occupant.

11



(%)

(¢}  No person shall go upon any residential premises and ring the doorbell, or rap or knock
upon the door, or create any sound in a manner calculated to attract the attention of the occupant
of the residence, for the purpose of securing an audience with the occupant and engaging in or
attempting to engage in a home solicitation transaction, canvassing activities or handbill
distribution, if a card as described in subsection (a) of this section is exhibited in a conspicuous
place upon or near the main entrance to the residence, unless the visit is the result of a request
made by the occupant.

(d)  No person, other than the occupant of the residence, shall remove, deface or render
illegible, a sign or card placed by the occupant pursuant to subsection (a) of this section.

(e) Any merchant, canvasser, or handbill distributor who has gained entrance to a residence,
or audience with the occupant, whether invited or not shall immediately depart from the premises
without disturbing the occupant further when requested to leave by the occupant.

Sec. 23-12. - Revocation of permit.

(@  Any permit issued under this chapter may be revoked by the police department for any of
the following reasons:

(1) arrest or conviction of a crime(s) of moral turpitude;

(2)  fraud or misrepresentation in the application for a permit;

(3)  fraud or misrepresentation in the course of conducting solicitation activities;
(4)  conducting solicitation activities contrary to the conditions of the permit;

(5)  conducting solicitation activities in such a manner as to create or constitute a danger
to the public health, safety or welfare.

(b)  Upon revocation, the police department shall deliver written notice to the permit holder
stating the action taken and the reasons supporting such action. The written notice shall be
delivered to the permit holder’s place of business or mailed to the permit holder’s last known
address. The chief of police or his designee shall have the authority to seize any and all permit
badges possessed by persons conducting business as a solicitor while the official notification
process is underway. At such time, any and all solicitation activities conducted under the authority
of that permit shall cease.

Sec. 23-13. - Appeal if permit denied or revoked.
If the police department refuses to issue a permit, the applicant shall have the right to appeal to the
City Council. Such appeal shall be taken by filing with the City Secretary within ten (10) days

from the date of the refusal. The same procedure of appeal shall apply to a permit revoked under
this chapter. Thereafter, the City Council shall set a reasonable time and place for a hearing on

12



(%)

such an appeal and notice of such hearing shall be mailed, postage prepaid, to the permittee at his
last known address at least five days prior to the date of the hearing.

Sec. 23-14. - Penalty for violation of Chapter.

Any person violating any of the provisions or terms of this Chapter shall be deemed guilty of a
misdemeanor and, upon conviction in the municipal court, be punished by a fine not to exceed the
sum of $500.00 for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall continue be deemed
to constitute a separate offense.

Sec. 23-15. - Solicitation on public property.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to peddle, hawk, sell, solicit, distribute or take orders
for any services, wares, merchandise, or goods, including, but not limited to, magazines,
encyclopedias, tools, photographs, flowers, candy, plants, or statues on the streets, street rights-of-
way, or medians of the City. This prohibition shall apply to and include any institution or group
organized for a political, religious or charitable purpose, or individuals engaging in such activities
on behalf of any such institution or group.

(b)  No permit provided for herein shall be issued for selling in the above manner.
Sec. 23-16. - Temporary Vendor’s License.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in temporary vending activities without first
obtaining a license to do so from the police department.

(b)  Any person desiring a license required by this section shall make application therefore to
the police department. The application shall include the following:

(N The name, social security number or taxpayer identification number, date of birth
and address of the applicant;

(2)  Whether the license is for an individual (natural person), a partnership, or a
corporation; and

(a) If an individual, the individual’s business or residence address and
telephone number;

(b)  Ifapartnership, the name of all partners, the principal business address, and
telephone number of each partner;

(c)  Ifacorporation, the person registering must state whether the corporation
is organized under the laws of the state or is a foreign corporation, the
mailing address, business location, telephone number, names of all officers
and directors or trustees of such corporation, and, if a foreign corporation,
the place of incorporation and registered agent for the state;

13



(1)

(3)  the kind of goods or services offered for sale;

(4)  the description of the location upon which he desires to conduct business;

(5)  the written permission from the landowner authorizing occupancy; and

(6)  the period of time for which the applicant wishes to conduct business in the City.
() At the time of filing an application for a license under this section, the applicant shall
submit, for inspection by the police department, his social security number, date of birth, written
proof of his identity, and provide fingerprint and photographic identification, if required.
(d)  The license fee for a temporary vendor shall be thirty-five dollars ($35.00) per day. The
fees herein provided for shall be used for the purpose of defraying expenses incident to the issuing

of such license.

(¢)  Any license issued under this section shall be maintained on the site where the business is
being conducted and be available for inspection at all times.

4y It shall be unlawful for a person to engage in temporary vending activities for more than
thirty (30) days within the City during each calendar year.

(2)  Notemporary vending activities may be conducted on or within the public right-of-way or
on the premises of any public property without first obtaining an event permit from the City. All
temporary vending activities must not be on the site of an existing business, in a residential area,
or in any other way conflicting with the zoning laws.

(h)  Exemptions from this section:

(1) The provisions of this section shall not apply to group exhibits or persons exhibiting
and selling agricultural products.

(2)  The fee provisions of this section shall not apply to non-profit organizations.

(3)  The provisions of this section shall not apply to mobile food establishments and
temporary food establishments that are required to get a food establishment permit
from the City to sell food.

Sec. 23-17. - Disaster Declaration.
Pursuant to its authority under Government Code Chapter 418, upon the declaration of a state of
disaster that encompasses the City of Waxahachie, the police department, in its discretion, may

temporarily pause the issuance of permits provided for herein, subject to all appropriate state and
federal law governing solicitation activities.”

14



(/&)

SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances of the
City of Waxahachie, Texas, except where the provisions of this ordinance are in direct conflict
with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such
ordinances are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases,
clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase,
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the
valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance,
since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this
Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.

SECTION 3. Except as provided herein, any person, firm or corporation who violates,
disobeys, omits, neglects or refuses to comply with or who resists the enforcement of any of the
provisions of this Ordinance shall be guilty of a Class C misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to
exceed Five Hundred Dollars (3500.00) for each offense. Each day that a violation is permitted to
exist shall constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 6. All rights and remedies of the City of Waxahachie are expressly saved as to
any and all violations of the provisions existing ordinances which have accrued at the time of the
effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both
civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such ordinances, same shall not be
affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the courts.

SECTION 7. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its adoption and
publication as required by law.

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS, ON THIS THE ___th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

David Hill, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lori Cartwright, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Brown, City Attorney

15



(/ 7 ) ORDINANCENO. _____

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS,
APPROVING REVISED BUDGET FIGURES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020, FUNDS
APPROPRATED FOR STREET MAINTENANCE AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
WILL BE USED FOR THAT PURPOSE, EITHER BY ENCUMBRANCE OR BY
TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECT FUND FOR STREETS; APPROVING AND
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020
AND TERMINATING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021, AND MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR
EACH DEPARTMENT; REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A
SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Waxahachie, Texas (hereinafter referred to
as the “City”) has caused to be filed with the City Secretary a budget to cover all proposed
expenditures of the government of the City for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020, and
ending September 30, 2021, (hereinafier referred to as the “Budget™); and

WHEREAS, public notice of the public hearing on the proposed annual budget, stating
the date, time, place and subject matter of said public hearing, was given as required by the Charter
of the City of Waxahachie and the laws of the State of Texas; and

WHEREAS, such public hearing was held on September 1, 2020, prior approval of such
date being hereby ratified and confirmed by the City Council, and all those wishing to speak on
the Budget were heard; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has studied the Budget and listened to the comments of the
taxpayers at the public hearing therefore and has determined that the Budget attached hereto is in
the best interest of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS:

Section 1. That all of the above premises are found to be true and correct and are
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.

Section 2. That the revised budget figures, prepared and submitted by the City Manager
for the 2019-2020 budget, be, and the same are hereby, in all things, approved and appropriated,
and any necessary transfers between accounts and departments are hereby authorized, approved,
and appropriated.

Section 3. That the Budget attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes is
adopted for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2020, and ending September 30, 2021; and there
is hereby appropriated from the funds indicated such projects, operations, activities, purchases and
other expenditures as proposed in the Budget.

Section 4. That the City Manager shall file or cause to be filed a true and correct copy of
the approved Budget, along with this ordinance, with the City Secretary and in the office of the
County Clerk of Ellis County, Texas, as required by State Law.



()

Section 5. That the distribution and division of the above-named appropriations are made
at the departmental level in the general fund and the water and sewer fund for the payment of
operating expenses and capital outlay as set out in the municipal budget.

Section 6. That at any time during the fiscal year, the City Manager may transfer part or
all of any unencumbered appropriation balance among or between general classifications within a
department. The City Manager shall report such transfer to the City Council by written message
at the next regular council meeting following the transfer action. The City Manager may not
authorize transfer of part of all of any unencumbered appropriation balance among or between
departments or funds of the City. The City Manager may recommend such transfer to the City
Council. The City Council may, at the recommendation of the City Manager or on its own volition,
transfer part or all of any unencumbered appropriation balance from one department or fund to
another department or fund by resolution.

Section 7. That any and all ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations, policies or
provisions in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed and rescinded to
the extent of conflict herewith.

Section 8, That if any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in the
Ordinance, or application thereto my person or circumstances is held invalid or unconstitutional
by & Court of competent jurisdiction such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions of the Ordinance; and the City Council hereby declares it would have passed such
remaining portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall
remain in full force and effect.

Section 9. That the necessity of adopting and approving a proposed budget for the next

fiscal year as required by the laws of the State of Texas requires that this Ordinance shall take
effect immediately from and after its passage, and it is accordingly so ordained.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this the 8" day of September, 2020.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

City Secretary



/7

CITY OF WAXAHACHIE

GENERAL FUND
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT
FY 2020 - 2021

ORIGINAL REVISED/YE

BUDGET ESTIMATE BUDGET

DESCRIPTION FY 2019-20 FY 2019.20 F Y 2020-2%
Revenues 40,428,900 39,464,398 40,874,025
Transfers In 4,556,880 4,682,750 4,605,140
Total Revenuas & Transfers In 44 985780 44,147,148 45,479,165
Expenditures

General Government

General Administration 1,581,212 1,551,753 1,600,128
Finance 1,107,725 1,094,224 1,308,480
City Attorney 100,000 115,000 115,000
General Items 402,090 464,467 3,152,769
Facility Maintenance 412,184 397,235 348,480
Human Resources 629,169 601,667 598,895
Information Technology 827,014 868,014 819,300
Economic Development 1,645,097 1,544,558 1,502,155
Downtown Development 275,280 279,657 252,812
Planning 647,582 613,033 888,480
Airport Operations 23,638 23,246 15,343
Total General Government 7,650,991 7,552,854 10,601,842
Public Safety

Police Depariment 11,177,055 10,816,390 11,289,689
Emergency Management 211,184 271,894 334,997
Fire Depariment 8,838,750 8,396,962 9,265,158
Building Services 943,235 1,193,788 935,460
Municipal Court 356,450 342,390 351,950
City Marshall 208,680 144,075 197,780
Total Public Safety 21,735,354 21,165,499 22,375,034
Public Works

Street Department 6,193,723 7.068,670 6,044,185
Central Garage 302,320 291,375 298,322
Engingering 775,362 836,025 885,285
City Engineer 379,333 317,938 0
Community Services 428,481 375,629 389,805
Animal Control 272,830 234 485 248.790
Total Public Works 8,352,049 9,124,122 7,866,387
Culture & Recreation

Parks & Recreation 2,234,811 2,731,010 2,417,870
Chautauqua Auditorium 29,450 40,125 22,212
Waxahachie Rodeo 18,030 17,060 18,290
Penn Park Pool 71,540 67,950 69,670
Optimist Pool 98,500 183,500 48 810
Amphitheater 100,680 79,050 113,220
Sims Library Tax Transfer 1,136,200 1,136,200 1,091,814
Senior Citizen Center 752,270 719,313 742.409
Total Culture & Recreation 4,441,481 4,974,208 4,524,295
Total Expenditures 42,179,875 42 816,683 45,367,558
Transfers Out

Transfer to Main Street Prog Grant 20,000 20,000 0
Total Transfers Qut 20,000 20,000 1]
Total Expenditures & Transfers Out 42,199,875 42 836,683 45,367,558
Revenues & Transfers In less Expenditures 2,785,905 1,310,465 111,607




(%)

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE BUDGET, MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE’'S WATER AND WASTEWATER
OPERATIONS FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS.
SECTION 1. The amounts listed are hereby appropriated out of the Water Fund for the following

expenses of the operation, maintenance, debt service and construction of the municipally owned
water system.

UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 491,063
METERS 850,563
WATER PRODUCTION 3,910,901
WATER DISTRIBUTION 947,111
! UTILITY BILLING 400,520
DEBT SERVICE 2,578,479
TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 2,333,920
TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 158.000
WATER USEAGE ’
TRA PAYMENT 439,370
TRANSFER TO SOKOLL WATER 1.380.975
TREATMENT JOINT VENTURE T
TOTAL WATER EXPENSES 13,490,902

SECTION 2. The amounts listed are hereby appropriated out of the Wastewater Fund for the
following expenses of the operation, maintenance, debt service, and construction of the
municipally owned wastewater system.



)

UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 442,831
WASTEWATER COLLECTION 1,274,977
WASTEWATER TREATMENT 2,494,429

| UTILITY BILLING | 352,485
| DEBT SERVICE | 3,791,595
| TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 1,775,000
TRANSFER GENERAL FUND ' 36.000
WASTEWATER USAGE ’
TOTAL WASTEWATER EXPENSES 10,167,317

SECTION 3. Except in cases of emergency, no money shall be drawn from the City Treasury,
nor shall any obligations for the expenditures of money be incurred, other than in accordance with
the appropriations contained by the City Charter by transfer between or increases in the amounts
appropriated herein.

SECTION 4. In order to provide for the efficient usual daily operation of the City of Waxahachie
by immediately appropriating sufficient funds for the support and operation of the City, an
emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and
after its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this the 8" day of September, 2020,

MAYOR

ATTEST:

City Secretary



40

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING WATER AND WASTEWATER FEES, BY AMENDING
VARIOUS SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF WAXAHACHIE,
AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CiTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE TEXAS:

That Section 33 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Waxahachie, is hereby amended to read as
follows:

SECTION 33-33. Deposits required.

Residential: A deposit of ninety-two dollars ($92.00) is required for regular residential service. A
deposit of sixty-nine dollars ($69.00) is required for accounts with wastewater and trash collection
service. A deposit of forty-three dollars ($43.00) is required for trash collection service only. The
billing department may adjust the amount of deposit based on payment history.

Residential New Construction: A deposit of one hundred fifty-nine dollars ($159.00) is required
for each new construction residential account.

Apartments, Commercial, and Industrial: The billing department may require higher amounts;
however, deposits are generally based on meter size as follows:

up to 1" water meter $238.00
1 %2 water meter $357.00
2" water meter $594.00
3” water meter $1,187.00
4” water meter $2,373.00
6" water meter $3,559.00
8” water meter $7,117.00
10" water meter or larger $11,861.00
Fire Hydrant meter with RPZ * $2,147.00

*Customer will be responsible for the cost of any damages incurred while meter is in their
possession.

No interest shall be paid on deposits. No deposit is required for other government entities. The
billing department may waive the deposit for separate irrigation meters.

That Section 33-36 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Waxahachie is hereby amended to
read as follows:



W)

SECTION 33-36. Water and Wastewater Rates.

(A) Water inside city: From and after the effective date of this ordinance, uniform monthly
water rates which shall prevail to all City of Waxahachie water customers are:

MONTHLY WATER RATES:

(1) Minimum water bill for the first fifieen hundred (1,500) gallons of usage (all accounts):

up to 1” water meter $19.71
1 4™ water meter $44.02
2” water meter $64.61
3” water meter $125.62
4” water meter $259.88
6" water meter $505.40
8” water meter $874.40
10" water meter or larger $1,367.02
Fire Hydrant meter $216.40

(2) The amount shown for the first fifteen hundred gallons of consumption in the above
schedule shall constitute a minimum bill for each customer. Billing shall be made in
hundreds of gallons. [rrigation meters using less than 200 gallons per month will not
be charged.

(3) Residential and sprinkler system meters will be subject to the following rates:

1,501 - 10,000 $5.19
10,601 — 20,000 $6.02
20,001 - 30,000 $6.82
30,001 - 40,000 $7.56
40,001 & above $8.56

Non-irrigation apartment meters, and commercial/industrial meters will be charged at a
rate of $5.19 per thousand gallons for all monthly usage above 1,500 gallons.

(B) Wastewater inside city: From and after the effective date of this ordinance, sewer
charges to apply to each dwelling unit for all single family and duplex residential
connections all mobile home parks or apartment complexes, and all commercial and
industrial customers shall be as follows:



" -

Monthly Wastewater Rates

Apartments, Mobile Home, Single-Family

Water Usage and Duplex Residence (Per Dwelling
Unit)
First 1,500 gallons $24.88 (minimum charge)
Over 1,500 to 11,000 gallons $4.38 per 1,000 gallons

Ali over 11,000 gallons, maximum

billing per dwelling $66.51

When there is a single billing for more than one (1) residence, each unit is to receive a one thousand
five hundred-gallon credit before additional charges are made, not to exceed eleven thousand
{11,000) gallons per unit.

Industrial Industrial Cost
Water Usage Commercial Recovery Per 1,000
Gallons
First 1,500 gallons $24.88 (minimum | $24.88 (minimum $0.21 (minimum
charge) charge) charge)
All usage over 1,500 $4.38 per 1,000 $4.38 per 1,000 $0.21 per 1,000
gallons gallons gallons gallons

That Section 33-40 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Waxahachie is hereby amended to
read as follows:

SECTION 33-40. Late charges; service restored upon payment of bill; fee for returned checks;
fee for replacement of cut-off valve; fire hydrant meter set fee; broken curb stop fee; cut lock fee;
reread meter service charge; tampering penalty.

(a) Late Fee. Payment for utility service shall be due fourteen (14) days after the billing date.
Any account with a balance due fourteen (14) days after the due date shall be assessed a penalty
of $10.00. If such date falls on the weekend or legal holiday, then payment is due the next business
day.

(b) Disconnection for Nonpayment: Any account with a balance due greater than $130.00, twenty-
one (21) days afier the billing date, shall be subject to disconnection. The past due amount plus a
reconnect fee of $41.00 ($74.00 after regular office hours) must be paid prior to reconnection of
services.

(c) Return Connection Fee: Customers are encouraged but not required to be present (or have a
representative present) anytime service is reestablished (This is recommended in order to prevent

flooding and water damage that could result from interior faucets being left in the “on” position,
hanging toilets floats, leaks and other conditions that could arise subsequent to the disconnection.)
In the event the customer or a designated representative (a) cannot be located on-site when the
service is reconnected and (b) the meter registers usage after the service has been reestablished
and thus presents the risk of water damage, the service will be turned back off and the customer
will be notified of the problem and asked to reschedule the reconnection. Subsequent trips to
reestablish service will be subject to a Return Reconnection Fee of $41.00 each if performed during



%

working hours or $74.00 if performed after working hours. This fee is applicable when service has
been disconnected for nonpayment; when service to a new account is established or when service
has been disconnected at the request of the customer.

(d) Return Check Fee. In the event the bank does not honor a customer’s check, a $35.00 fee will
be charged.

(e) Replacement of Cut-off Valve. In the event a customer has damaged a cut-off valve or curb
stop to the point the valve must be replaced, then, the customer shall be billed a $74.00 replacement
fee, plus the actual cost of materials to replace the damaged item. In the event a customer has
broken a cut-off valve for the purpose of removing a lock, an additional tampering penalty of
$152.00 (see “(j)” below) must be paid before service is restored.

(f) Fire hydrant meter set fee: $38.00

(g) Meter Box Replacement Fee: $63.00 plus actual materials cost

(h) Cut lock fee: $152.00

(i) Reread meter service charge: $18.00

(i) Tampering penalty: $152.00

(k) New account fee: $19.00

(I) Sokoll Rate fee: $1.40 per 1,000 gallons

(k) Solid Waste fee: $14.13 (*excluding sales tax)
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 8" day of September, 2020.

ATTEST:

City Secretary Mayor



%)

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE BUDGET, MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
SUPPORT OF THE SOKOLL WATER TREATMENT PLANT JOINT VENTURE FOR
THE PERIOD BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

ORDINANCE NO.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS.

SECTION 1. The amounts listed are hereby appropriated out of the Sokoll Water Treatment Plant
for the following expenses of the operation, maintenance, and debt service of the Water Treatment
Joint Venture water system.

WATER PRODUCTION | 1,969,645
%
' DEBT SERVICE | 2,763,260
— 1
TRANSFER TO CITY OF WAXAHACHIE 120.000
GENERAL FUND ’
TRANSFER TO CITY OF WAXAHACHIE 185.000
WATER FUND ’
TRANSFER TO CITY OF WAXAHACHIE 75.900
WASTEWATER FUND ’
TOTAL WATER EXPENSES 5,113,805

SECTION 2. Except in cases of emergency, no money shall be drawn from the City Treasury,
nor shall any obligations for expenditures of money be incurred, other than in accordance with the
appropriations contained by the City Charter by transfer between or increases in the amounts
appropriated herein.

SECTION 3. In order to provide for the efficient usual daily operation of the City of Waxahachie
by immediately appropriating sufficient funds for the support and operation of the City, an
emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and
after its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this the 8" day of September, 2020.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

City Secretary



A

AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE SUPPORT OF THE CITY
GOVERNMENT OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND
DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

ORDINANCE NO.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS.

SECTION. 1. The amount of $1,867,706 is appropriated out of the Refuse Service Fund
for disposal operations.

SECTION 2. The amount of $803,057 is appropriated out of the Hotel Tax Fund for
contractual obligations.

SECTION 3. The amount of $5,118,898 is appropriated out of the Waxahachie
Community Development Corporation of operation of the Civic Center, operation of the Sports
Complex, Community Beautification, debt service, and economic development.

SECTION 4. The amount of $6,192,233 is hereby appropriated out of the Interest and
Sinking Fund for debt service requirements.

SECTION 5. Except in cases of emergency, no money shall be drawn from the City
Treasury, nor shall any obligations for the expenditures of money be incurred, other than in
accordance with the appropriations contained by the City Charter for transfer between or increases
in the amounts appropriated herein.

SECTION 6. In order to provide for the efficient usual daily operation of the City of
Waxahachie, by immediately appropriating sufficient funds for the support and operation of the
City, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this ordinance shall take effect immediately
from and after its passage.

INTRODUCED, PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this the 8™ day of September, 2020.

MAYOR

ATTEST:

City Secretary



Memorandum

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council

From: Chad Tustison, Finance Dire
Thru: Michael Scott, City Manag
Date: September 4, 2020

Re: Consider a Motion to Ratify the Property Tax Revenue Increase
Reflected in the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget In Accordance With the
Texas Local Government Code

The Texas Local Government Code requires that “adoption of a budget that
will require raising more revenue from property taxes than in the previous
year requires a separate vote of the governing body to ratify the property tax
increase reflected in the budget.”

The increase in the budget provides for continued and additional funding for
essential city services such as public safety and street maintenance, additional
parks and senior center improvements, and continued support of the City’s
capital improvements program.

The motion would be -

*I move to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the budget.”

1|Page



e

ORDPINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING FOR THE USE AND SUPPORT OF THE MUNICIPAL
GOVERNMENT OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS, AND PROVIDING FOR
THE INTEREST AND SINKING FUND FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021 AND APPORTIONING
EACH LEVY FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE.

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Waxahachie, Texas, that section 30-2 of the Code
of Ordinances, City of Waxahachie, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 30-2. Tax Levy. There is hereby levied and there shall be assessed and collected for
the Maintenance and Operation of the municipal government of the City of Waxahachie, Texas,
and to meet Interest and Sinking requirements for fiscal year 2021, upon all property, real, personal
and mixed within the corporate limits of the City subject to taxation, a total tax of 66 cents on each
one hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation based on 100% of market value of said
property, said tax being so levied and apportioned to the specific purpose herein set forth.

a. For the maintenance and operation of the general government including current expenses
and for general improvements of the City and its property, known as the General Fund,
46.580 cents on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation of all taxable
property, and

b. For the maintenance and operation of a public library within the City, known as Sims
Library, 2.620 cents on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation of all
taxable property, and

c. For the purpose of paying interest and principal for the redemption of bonds, warrants, and
other long-term obligations heretofore legally issued by the City, known as the Interest and
Sinking Fund, 16.800 cents on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation
of all taxable property.

THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND
OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR'S TAX RATE.

THE TAX RATE WILL EFFECTIVELY BE RAISED BY 2.89 PERCENT AND WILL
RAISE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS ON A $100,000 HOME BY
APPROXIMATELY $13.84.

All Taxes as set out above shall be payable as set out by existing city ordinances and statutes of
the State of Texas.

In order to provide for the efficient, usual daily operation of the City by immediately levying the
tax rates for the current fiscal year, an emergency is hereby declared to exist and this ordinance
shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this the 8% day of September, 2020.

MAYOR
ATTEST:

City Secretary



#)

Motion to Adopt the Tax Rate

Tax Code 26.05(b} requires that the following language be used in adopting the tox rate.

e “Imove that the property tax rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate
of 0.66, which is effectively a 4.7% percent increase in the tax rate.”



(A

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING AND
RE-ESTABLISHING CLASSIFIED POSITIONS UNDER CIVIL SERVICE IN THE
FIRE AND POLICE DEPARTMENTS, REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. The classified positions under Civil Service in the Fire Department shall be
as follows:

Assistant Fire Chief
Fire Marshal

Fire Battalion Chief
Fire Captain

Fire Lieutenant

Fire Pumper Engineer
Firefighter

LI — L O th — —

2
3

SECTION 2. The classified positions under Civil Service in the Police Department shall
be as follows:

Assistant Police Chief
Police Lieutenant
Sergeants

Corporal

Police Patrol Officer

h 00 Lh N

5

SECTION 3. The annual/monthly base rate pay for each of the above captioned classified
positions shall be determined by each year's budget.

SECTION 4. The positions of Assistant Fire Chief and Assistant Police Chief shall be
appointed positions, appointed by the head of the department.

SECTION 5. That all ordinances of the City of Waxahachie heretofore adopted which are
in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 6. That this ordinance shall take effect thirty days after passage and all
requirements under Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code have been satisfied.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this day of , 2020.

MAYOR
ATTEST:

CITY SECRETARY





